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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ER|ME

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year under review, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately HK$142.5 million, a 7.4% decrease compared
to approximately HK$153.9 million in 2012. The decrease in
revenue mainly resulted from the closure of 2 elderly care
homes in the second half of 2012. The Group's net profit for
the year decreased from approximately HK$96.0 million in
2012 to approximately HK$28.8 million in 2013. The reduction
in profitability for the year was principally due to a fair value
loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss of approximately HK$10.3 million in 2013 compared to
a fair value gain of approximately HK$54.3 million in 2012.
If the movement in fair value on financial instruments were
excluded, the Group’s profit before tax for the year ended
31 December 2013 would be approximately HK$40.6 million
(2012: HK$42.6 million).

Basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of the
Company amount to HK13.4 cents (2012: HK46.7 cents).

The Group has continued to monitor possible business
opportunities and acquisitions as replacements for the medical
services business disposed in October 2010. As disclosed
in the joint announcement dated 30 December 2013 issued
by the Company and SkyOcean Investment Holdings Limited
("“SkyOcean Investment”), the Company completed the
acquisition of Skyleaf Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (the
"Skyleaf Group”), which holds properties under development
for sale, on 30 December 2013 and engaged in a new business
sector namely the property development business. We will
continue to review opportunities as they are identified.

In view of the circumstances, the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board” or the “Directors”) has decided not to
propose a final dividend.

APPRECIATION

| would like to express my greatest appreciation to the entire
staff of the Group for their hard work and efforts. | would also
like to extend my gratitude to the investors, business partners,
and shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) for
their support and confidence in the Group over the years. |
am highly confident that the Group will continue to grow and
create significant value to the consumers of our services,
which shall generate significant shareholder value. | look
forward to sharing with you more positive developments in
years to come.

Zhou Zheng
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 March 2014
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
LB

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$142.5 million, a 7.4% decrease
from the approximately HK$153.9 million in 2012. The
decrease in revenue mainly resulted from the closure of 2
elderly care homes in the second half of 2012. The Group's
net profit for the year decreased from approximately HK$96.0
million in 2012 to approximately HK$28.8 million in 2013. The
reduction in profitability for the year was principally due to a
fair value loss on financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately HK$10.3 million in 2013
compared to a fair value gain of approximately HK$54.3 million
in 2012. If the movement in fair value on financial instruments
were excluded, the Group's profit before tax for the year ended
31 December 2013 would be approximately HK$40.6 million
(2012: HK$42.6 million).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Company has been continually searching for a new
business opportunity since the sale of its medical services
business in 2010. As disclosed in the joint announcement
dated 30 December 2013 issued by the Company and
SkyOcean Investment, the Company completed the acquisition
of the Skyleaf Group at a cash consideration of HK$450 million
on 30 December 2013 and engaged in a new business sector
namely the property development business.

The "4th Generation Skyocean City"” urban complex
project (the “Project”) held by the Skyleaf Group involves
the development of a multi-functional urban complex for
commercial, office, apartment, tourism, cultural, dining,
entertainment and shopping purposes, including a shopping
centre, a commercial zone, a special amusement park, offices,
restaurants area and apartment units. It is located in Qian’an
city bound in the west by Yanshan Avenue, in the east by
Fengging Road, in the south by Huichang Street and in the
north by Huixing Street and comprises five parcels of land
with a total site area of approximately 202,000 square metres.
Phase 1 of the Project, which involves two parcels of land with
a total site area of approximately 106,000 square metres, a
planned gross building area of approximately 163,000 square
metres and six commercial buildings, is under development as
at 31 December 2013 and at the date of this report. Subject to
the issuance of the construction completion certificates, final
inspection of phase 1 of the Project is expected to take place in
the second quarter of 2014 and sale is expected to commence
towards the end of 2014.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
CEMNRE

The development of phase 2 and phase 3 of the "4th
Generation Skyocean City"”, comprising 1 and 2 commercial/
apartment buildings respectively, will commence in 2014 and
2016 respectively. The Board will review the market demand
and conditions and determine the development schedule in
due course.

Driven by the rapid economic development in the PRC,
progressing urbanisation and increasing per capita annual
disposable income for urban households, demand for
properties in the PRC has shown a positive growth trend in
recent years subject to setbacks from time to time resulting
from various factors. The property development business
in the PRC is considered to have the capacity to generate
ongoing profits provided it is well managed. The location of
the Company’s properties under development for sale is at
Qian'an city which is approximately 200km from Beijing. The
area is a developing industrial area and population is expected
to continue to grow. However as with all businesses the
subject business carries various risks. These include the
possible overrunning of costs, market downturns and changes
in government policy amongst others. The Group will appoint
person(s) with relevant experience and expertise in the
property development business in the PRC to be member(s) of
senior management of the Group to manage these risks.

The bond related investments held by the Group decreased
from approximately HK$626.4 million at 31 December 2012 to
approximately HK$568.4 million at 31 December 2013. Interest
and investment income from the portfolio amounted to
HK$43.8 million, a 5.9% increase compared to approximately
HK$41.4 million in 2012. The reduction in bond related
investments was principally due to fair value losses as well
as redemption of certain bonds by the issuers. The Group's
investment in bonds benefited from the easing monetary
policies in the United States in 2012, but the wavering
monetary policies of the United States in 2013 created
volatility in the Group’s bond value.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s major investments
included approximately HK$531.1 million invested in bonds
issued by 18 companies listed in Hong Kong and overseas and
approximately HK$37.3 million in an investment fund.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
EE DR

With the exception of the FKP notes as disclosed in the
Company's announcement dated 16 March 2012, all of the
Group's bond related investments are denominated in US
dollars. The Group entered into a forward exchange contract to
hedge against the foreign currency exposure of the FKP notes
which are denominated in Australian dollars. In January 2014,
the Group exercised the put option to redeem the FKP notes at
par and the forward exchange contract was terminated.

A detail review of the investment portfolio of the Group will be
conducted within 2014 including rebalancing the resources of
the Group should appropriate opportunities arise.

Senior Care currently operates 4 elderly care homes with 934
beds of which approximately 350 beds are operated pursuant
to the Enhanced Bought Place Scheme (“EBPS") with the
Social Welfare Department.

Turnover of Senior Care reduced from approximately HK$93.9
million in 2012 to approximately HK$84.4 million in 2013. The
reduction was principally due to the closure of 2 homes in
the last quarter of 2012 because of issues related to lease
renewal.

The segmental profit of Senior Care increased from
approximately HK$0.6 million in 2012 to approximately HK$4.5
million in 2013 as a result of the closure of loss-making
Winfield Home in Yaumatei in the second half of 2012, the
increase in occupancy level and increase in subsidy income
from the Government.

The operating environment of the Group's elderly care services
remains challenging notwithstanding a fruitful 2013. Senior
Care struggled with rising labour and rental costs. Personal
care workers are in continual short supply. The tenancy
agreements of two of the Group's elderly homes were
renewed in the second half of 2013 with rent increases of
20% and 37.5% respectively. The statutory minimum wages
increased from HK$28 to HK$30 per hour with effect from 1
May 2013. The full year effect of the escalated rentals together
with the increase in staff costs narrows our operating margin
going forward as it is unlikely that the Group will be able to
pass the increase in costs fully onto residents.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
CEMNRE

In the 2014-15 Budget (the “Budget”), the Hong Kong
Government will continue to raise the subsidies for places
under the EBPS and allocate additional funding for the
purchase of additional places under EBPS. The Budget also
mentioned that the feasibility of introducing residential care
service vouchers will be explored for the elderly. About
HK$800 million has been earmarked to issue a total of 3,000
residential care services vouchers in phases within three years
from 2015-16.

The revenue of Lynx decreased from approximately HK$4.6
million in 2012 to approximately HK$3.7 million in 2013 with
the operating loss narrowed from approximately HK$3.9 million
in 2012 to approximately HK$2.8 million in 2013. Although
the loss has narrowed the sales growth of Lynx was still
disappointing as it does not have products which can provide
recurring revenue.

Lynx is exploring the sales opportunity for community medical
equipment, devices and supplies.

As at 31 December 2013, the equity attributable to the owners
of the Company amounted to HK$1,584.6 million, representing
an increase of HK$31.5 million from that of 31 December
2012. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company
has repurchased and cancelled 1,618,000 ordinary shares for
a total consideration of approximately HK$9.6 million including
expenses.

The Group's cash and bank balances amounted to HK$544.3
million (2012: HK$920.7 million). The decrease was mainly
attributable to the acquisition of the Skyleaf Group at a cash
consideration of HK$450 million which was completed on 30
December 2013. It is the Group's objective to ensure there are
adequate funds to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

To enhance returns to Shareholders, the Group invested in
bonds as an alternative to holding bank deposits. The bonds
acquired by the Group were either issued for a specific term
or perpetual form and will be redeemable on their respective
maturity dates or where applicable, callable on fixed call dates.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
EE DR

The value of the Group’s bond related investments amounted
to HK$568.4 million as at 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$626.4
million). They are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. The Group has recognised interest and
other investment income of approximately HK$43.8 million and
a net fair value loss of approximately HK$10.3 million for its
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s current ratio was 2.1,
based on the current assets of approximately HK$2.28 billion
and current liabilities of approximately HK$1.09 billion. As at 31
December 2013, the Group's gearing ratio was approximately
0.8 based on total liabilities of approximately HK$1.27 billion
and total equity of approximately HK$1.58 billion.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a net cash position
and had sufficient funding to pay off all the outstanding
liabilities and meet its working capital requirement.

Cash and bank balances of the Group are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars or US dollars. Short-term time deposits
are made for varying periods between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit
rates.

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
the Group and the interest and investment income derived
therefrom are denominated in US dollars or Australian dollars.
As the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the US dollar, the Group
considers the foreign exchange risk in relation to its exposure
to US dollars to be insignificant, and accordingly, it does not
have any requirement to use financial instruments for hedging
purposes. The Group entered into a forward exchange contract
to hedge against foreign currency risk for its investment and
income denominated in Australian dollars but this contract has
been terminated after the Group exercised the put option to
redeem the FKP notes in January 2014.

At 31 December 2013, the Group pledged HK$13.9 million
(2012: HK$13.8 million) to secure its banking facilities.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
CEMNRE

At 31 December 2013, properties under development for sale
with carrying values of HK$1,330.0 million held by the Group
were pledged to a bank to secure the banking facilities granted
to a related company, the details of which were disclosed in
the joint announcement dated 30 October 2013 issued by the
Company and SkyOcean Investment.

Contingent Liabilities

(a)

(b)

Pursuant to the Share Sale Agreement dated 8 October
2010, the Company and Cautious Base agreed to
dispose of the entire interest of the Disposal Group.
The Group has signed a tax deed to indemnify the
purchaser for tax liabilities of the Disposal Group prior
to the completion of the disposal which have not been
provided for in the closing account of the Disposal
Group as at 30 November 2010. The valid period
for claims under the tax deed shall be 7 years from
completion. The Group currently considers it is not
probable likely that any liabilities will arise therefrom.

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012,
the Group was engaged in certain litigation and
claims which have not been disclosed in detail, as
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
material economic benefits is considered remote.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
EEOE

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries and
Associates

For the year ended 31 December 2013, there were no material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and associates by the
Group other than the acquisition of the Skyleaf Group.

Management and Staff

At 31 December 2013, the total number of employees
(including both full time and part time) was approximately 391.
Total staff costs amounted to approximately HK$49.9 million
(year ended 31 December 2012: HK$56.3 million). The Group
offers competitive remuneration packages, together with
discretionary bonuses to its staff, based on industry practices,
and individual and Group performances. The Group also offers
training courses and continuous education sessions as part of
the Group’s emphasis on staff training and development.

DIVIDEND

The Board resolved not to recommend any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: final dividend of
HK18.5 cents per share and special dividend of HK21.5 cents
per share).

EARERHENBRBE QT

BE_Z—=6+_A=+—HILEE -
BRUEREEEIN  NEBWEETEKR
g S S M Kt AR FIE o

EEEREES
RZFB—=F+-A=+—H FTEEHK
AH3EEE(BEERERE) - AR
BRAKNRIIBEBT(HE-F—=
F+ZA=+—HILFE 663BEB
7)o ARERBTRES - BEMEAR
ARE 2z ZRREERMABRF N ZHM
e RRIBIEL - AEMT+HERESR
Al R R - A PR S I AR R R
EERE -

RE
ESECRRTERREBRE_F—=
TZA=THLEFEZRERE(ZF

— 1 KEIR B E18.5 L K RIRR
BER21.581) -

Annual Report 2013 4R




PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERERITHAE-E

ZHOU ZHENG

Mr. Zhou, aged 43, was appointed as the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company since January 2014. He is
the sole director and beneficial owner of 80% equity interest
in SkyOcean Investment, the immediate holding company of
the Company. He is also the sole director of two subsidiaries
of the Company, including Skyleaf Holdings Limited and
SkyOcean International United Limited, Mr. Zhou has over 10
years of working experience in the property development and
commercial retail industries and over 7 years of experience in
the financial investment industry. He is currently a shareholder
and the chairman of SkyOcean Holdings Limited (K7F#%R%
BBR/AT]), a company established in the PRC and principally
engaged in property development, commercial retail and
financial investments industries. Mr. Zhou is also a director of
China Minerals Mining Corporation, the shares of which are
listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange. Mr. Zhou is the elder
brother of Ms. Zhou and the brother-in-law of Mr. Liu.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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ZHOU JIN

Ms. Zhou, aged 41, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company since January 2014. She is the beneficial
owner of 20% equity interest in SkyOcean Investment. She
has working experience in the property development and
commercial retail industries in the PRC. She is currently the
vice-chairman of SkyOcean Holdings Limited (KEZRAR A
A]). Ms. Zhou is the younger sister of Mr. Zhou and the spouse
of Mr. Liu.

LIU LI

Mr. Liu, aged 43, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company since January 2014. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Metallic Material and Heat Treatment Engineering
(& BMEEEEIR) from Yanshan University (B K2, He
has working experience in property development and electric
engineering. He is currently an executive director of SkyOcean
Holdings Limited (RF#ZEARAR]). Prior to that, Mr. Liu
worked for Qinhuangdao Electric Power Company. Mr. Liu is
the spouse of Ms. Zhou and the brother-in-law of Mr. Zhou.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERARTRAE-E

CHAN TAK KWONG

Mr. Chan, aged 43, was appointed as an Executive Director
and Company Secretary of the Company since January 2014.
He holds a Bachelor's Degree in Accountancy from the City
University of Hong Kong and is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He has been
the Chief Financial Officer of SkyOcean Holdings Limited
(RAFEEBRBR AT since July 2013. Prior to that, Mr. Chan
worked in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 2011 to 2013
and his last position was senior manager. He was senior
manager in Beijing SOCAM Real Estate Consulting Co., Ltd.,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Shui On Construction
and Materials Limited (stock code: 983) in 2010. Mr. Chan
worked in Ernst & Young from 1994 to January 2010 and his
last position was senior manager.

LI CHAK HUNG

Mr. Li Chak Hung, aged 48, was appointed an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in October 2004. He
holds a Bachelor's Degree of Business Administration and is
a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom.
He has over 20 years’ experience in auditing, accounting and
financial management. Mr. Li is also an independent non-
executive director of ChinaVision Media Group Limited.
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MENG XIAOSU

Dr. Meng Xiaosu, aged 64, holds a Ph.D. degree in economics
from Peking University. He was employed as a part-time
professor at various universities, including Peking University,
Renmin University of China, Ningbo University and China
University of Political Science and Law. Dr. Meng received a
special subsidy in recognition of his academic achievement in
business administration as “An Outstanding Expert” by the
State Council of China in 2005.

Dr. Meng is currently a consultant of China National Real
Estate Development Group Corporation (“CRED") (Ff B & ith &
FEEBAFIEEER), a company established in the PRC, the
chairman of Huili Investment Fund Management Company
Limited (ENKREESEEFRAAIEEK), an investment
fund management firm established in the PRC specialising in
real estate development, and the chairman of the supervisory
board of Happy Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (F@ASZRBIMN A
[RABIESEEE/F), an insurance company established in the
PRC. Dr. Meng worked in CRED from 1992 to 2006, where
he held various positions including general manager, party
secretary, president and chairman of the board.

Dr. Meng was an independent non-executive director of
RREEF China Commercial Trust (stock code: 625) prior to
31 March 2013.
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ANTHONY YUEN KOON TUNG

Mr. Yuen, aged 41, has been working in Convoy Financial
Services Limited (“Convoy"”) as an associate director since
2003. Prior to joining Convoy, Mr. Yuen worked in the
investment banking department of Core Pacific-Yamaichi
Capital Limited and the compliance department and corporate
finance department in Credit Agricole Indosuez. Mr. Yuen
worked in the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange from
September 1997 to June 2000 and the audit department of
Ernst & Young from September 1994 to April 1997.

Mr. Yuen received his bachelor’'s degree in business
administration with a concentration in finance from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1994. Mr. Yuen is
a member of the Montana Board of Public Accountants,
Montana, USA.

Mr. Yuen was an independent non-executive director of Crosby

Capital Limited (stock code: 8088) from 31 May 2013 to 19
September 2013.
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LEO LAM HON YIU

Mr. Leo Lam Hon Yiu, aged 48, has joined the Group since
1994. He is currently the General Manager (Operations) of
the Company, an executive director of Senior Care Elderly
Limited and LYNX Technology Limited and director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. He holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Law
from Tsinghua University and a Master's degree in Business
Administration. Mr. Lam is also a Fellow of both the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

DENNIS LIU WING KAI

Mr. Dennis Liu Wing Kai, aged 47, has joined the Group since
2011. He is currently the Sales Manager of LYNX Technology
Limited. Mr. Liu has over 18 years working experience in sales
and marketing. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu had been
holding a managerial position in a medical equipment supply
company. He holds a Bachelor of Science Honors in Actuarial
Science from The University of Western Ontario, Canada.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEER®RE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance within a sensible framework with an
emphasis on the principles of transparency, accountability
and independence. The board of directors of the Company
("Board") believes that good corporate governance is essential
to the success of the Company and to the enhancement of
shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT

In the light of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”),
the Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices
of the Company with the adoption of the various enhanced
procedures which are detailed in this report. The Company has
applied the principles of, and complied with, the applicable
code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2013, except for certain deviations as specified with
considered reasons for such deviations as explained below.
The Board will review the current practices at least annually,
and make appropriate changes if considered necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERRSE

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises seven directors (“Directors”)
in total, with four Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs"”). The composition of the
Board during the year and up to the date of this report is set
out as follows:
Executive Directors: Zhou Zheng (appointed as executive
Director on 6 January 2014 and
appointed as Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer on 27
January 2014)
Zhou Jin (appointed on 6 January 2014)

Liu Li (appointed on 6 January 2014)

Chan Tak Kwong
(appointed on 6 January 2014)
Mark Wong Tai Chun
(resigned as executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer on 27 January
2014)
NED: Arthur George Dew
(resigned as NED and Chairman of
the Board on 27 January 2014)
INEDs: Li Chak Hung
Meng Xiaosu (appointed on 7 March
2014)
Anthony Yuen Koon Tung
(appointed on 7 March 2014)
Francis J. Chang Chu Fai
(resigned on 27 January 2014)
Carlisle Caldow Procter
(resigned on 27 January 2014)

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in
the “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” section on
pages 14 to 18 of this report.

Board Process

During the year, the NEDs (a majority of whom are
independent) provided the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively “Group"”) with a wide range of expertise and
experience. Their active participation in the Board and
committee meetings brought independent judgment on
issues relating to the Group’s strategy, performance and
management process, taking into account the interests of all
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).
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Following the resignation of Messrs. Francis J. Chang Chu Fai
and Carlisle Caldow Procter as INEDs of the Company on 27
January 2014, the number of INEDs fell below the minimum
number required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules and
also fell below one-third of the Board as required under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules. The number of Audit Committee
members fell below the minimum number required under Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Remuneration Committee
did not comprise a majority of INEDs as required under Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules. The above non-compliance has been
remedied in accordance with Rule 3.11, Rule 3.23 and Rule
3.27 of the Listing Rules upon the appointment of Dr. Meng
Xiaosu and Mr. Anthony Yuen Koon Tung as INEDs of the
Company on 7 March 2014.

Save as disclosed above, throughout the year and up to
the date of this report, the Company has had three INEDs
representing not less than one-third of the Board. At least one
of the INEDs have the appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise
under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Board has received
from each INED an annual confirmation of his independence
and considers that all the INEDs are independent under the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group,
and to review and approve the Group’'s annual and interim
results and other ad hoc matters which need to be dealt
with. During the year, four Board meetings were held and the
individual attendance records of each Director at the meetings
of the Board, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
general meetings during the year ended 31 December 2013 are
set out below:
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Executive Director: HTES:
Mark Wong Tai Chun IRH 4J4 mn 1
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The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering mainly the Group's overall strategy, annual
operating budget, annual and interim results, approval of
Directors’ appointment or re-appointment (based on the
recommendations made by the Nomination Committee),
material contracts and transactions, corporate governance as
well as other significant policy and financial matters. The Board
has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the executive
management. The respective functions of the Board and
management of the Company have been formalised and set
out in writing and will be reviewed by the Board from time to
time to ensure that they are consistent with the existing rules
and regulations.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance
to facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. At least
14 days' notice of a Board meeting is normally given to all
Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters
for discussion in the agenda. The company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman
in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda
and the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all
Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of a regular
Board meeting (and so far as practicable for such other Board
meetings). Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated
to all Directors for their comment before being tabled at the
following Board meeting for approval. All minutes are kept
by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

According to current Board practice, if a substantial
Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter
to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined
to be material, the matter will be dealt with by the Board at a
duly convened Board meeting. The Bye-laws of the Company
("Bye-Laws") also stipulate that save for the exceptions as
provided therein, a Director shall abstain from voting on any
board resolution and not be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving any contract or arrangement in which such
Director or any of his associates has a material interest.
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Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and
related materials and has access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary. The Board and each Director also
have separate and independent access to the Company's
senior management. Directors will be continuously updated
on the major development of the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, a written procedure was established in June 2005
to enable the Directors, in discharge of their duties, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at a reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

For continuous professional development, in addition to
Directors’ attendance at meetings and review of papers and
circulars sent by the management, the Directors participated in
the activities including the following:
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SHFESERRTHY
Attending
trainings/
briefings/
seminars/
conferences
relevant to
Directors’ duties
Reading HEHREERE
Regulatory BRI,
Updates IE: -
Name of Directors EEHS WHEEREH E#HEg g
Executive Directors: HITES
Zhou Zheng B v v
Zhou Jin & v v
Liu Li 25 v v
Chan Tak Kwong PR{= Y v v
Mark Wong Tai Chun BN v v
NED: FHITES :
Arthur George Dew I CEDrA v v
INEDs: BYEHTES
Li Chak Hung R v v
Meng Xiaosu HBEH v v
Anthony Yuen Koon Tung Bt i@ 4 v
Francis J. Chang Chu Fai Lf=p v v
Carlisle Caldow Procter Carlisle Caldow Procter v v
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ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. There has been
a deviation from this code provision since the appointment
of Mr. Zhou Zheng as the Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from
27 January 2014. The Board considers this arrangement to
be appropriate for the Company in view of Mr. Zhou Zheng's
extensive experience in the property development industry in
the PRC and his in-depth knowledge of the Group's property
development operation and business. The Board believes that
a balance of power and authority is adequately ensured by the
operation of the Board which comprises experienced and high
caliber individuals including three independent non-executive
directors. Nevertheless, the Board will identify an appropriate
person to take up the role of chief executive when necessary.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In June 2005, the Board established and adopted a written
nomination procedure (“Nomination Procedure”) specifying
the process and criteria for the selection and recommendation
of candidates for directorship of the Company. The Chairman
of the Board shall, based on those criteria as set out in the
Nomination Procedure (such as appropriate experience,
personal skills and time commitment, etc.), identify and
recommend the proposed candidate to the Board for approval
of an appointment. The existing Nomination Procedure has
been included in the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee with effect from the establishment of the
Nomination Committee on 20 March 2012.

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction
package from the Company Secretary on the first occasion of
his appointment. This induction package is a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the responsibilities and on-
going obligations to be observed by a director pursuant to
the Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules and Securities and
Futures Ordinance. In addition, this induction package includes
materials briefly describing the operations and business of
the Company, the latest published financial reports of the
Company and the documentation for the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Board. Directors will be continuously
updated on any major developments of the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.
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All NEDs (including INEDs) of the Company were appointed for
a specific term, but subject to the relevant provisions of the
Bye-Laws or any other applicable laws whereby the Directors
shall vacate or retire from their office but shall be eligible for
re-election.

According to the Bye-Laws, at each annual general meeting of
the Company (“AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation. Further, any Director appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company whilst for those appointed
as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next
following AGM and in both cases, those Directors shall then be
eligible for re-election at the relevant meeting. Every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance
duties and has adopted the written terms of reference on its
corporate governance functions in April 2012.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance
functions include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

In 2013 and up to the date of this report, the Board has
performed the corporate governance duties in accordance with
its terms of reference.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including
an Audit Committee, a Nomination Committee and a
Remuneration Committee, each of which has its specific
written terms of reference. Copies of minutes of all meetings
and resolutions of the committees, which are kept by the
Company Secretary, are circulated to all Board members
and the committees are required to report back to the Board
on their decision and recommendations where appropriate.
The procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting,
as mentioned in the section headed “The Board” of this
report, have been adopted for committee meetings so far as
practicable.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 20 March 2012
and is chaired by the Chairman of the Board and comprises a
majority of INEDs. During the year, the Nomination Committee
was made up four members, namely:

Mr. Arthur George Dew (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee) (resigned on 27 January 2014)
Mr. Francis J. Chang Chu Fai (resigned on 27 January 2014)

Mr. Li Chak Hung
Mr. Carlisle Caldow Procter (resigned on 27 January 2014)

As at the date of publication of this report, the Nomination
Committee is made up of the following members:

Mr. Zhou Zheng (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
(appointed as executive Director on 6 January 2014 and
appointed as chairman of the Nomination Committee on 7
March 2014)

Mr. Li Chak Hung

Dr. Meng Xiaosu (appointed on 7 March 2014)

Mr. Anthony Yuen Koon Tung (appointed on 7 March 2014)
The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to

independent professional advice according to the Company’s
policy if considered necessary.
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The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
are:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(ii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

(i) to assess the independence of INEDs; and

(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman of the Board and the CEO.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and the Company.

The Nomination Committee will meet as and when necessary
in accordance with its terms of reference and may also deal
with matters by way of circulation. In 2013, no Nomination
Committee meeting was held while the Nomination
Committee dealt with matters by way of circulation. In 2013
and up to the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
performed the works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and recommended for Board approval the
proposed resolutions for re-election of the retiring
Directors at 2013 AGM; and

(ii) reviewed and recommended for Board approval the
renewed terms of appointment of NEDs (including
INEDs) with reference to the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the independence of each
INED.

REZBEZIEZACKBER

(i) R EFEHRE - ABKEK
(B¥EfEE « MR R&ER) - L AE
BARRBMEERBAESTSRED
Ef B

(i) VEABSEERAETIESEN
BMAL  YHERBABALL
TEFIHRBERAESTSRLES

(i) FHEEMIFATERMELE &

(ivi HEFZEXEFZEEURES
(LERBEFE TR RITREH) &
EREREFSRLER -

RAZEGZRERKECRELHARS
FIER AR ([BRA ) RARBBERE
& o

RAZEERNAFTERBREEBELE
RITER TUEREMNXGTARES

*ok%éz RIE—=ZFWERTY

CEEEBERXHETRAERSEE o B
:g——iﬁﬁi$ﬁiaﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ%
ZEgCRIT 2 IERET -

(i) pnf WEZRES S AERERRET
EEREN_ZT—=FRREFK
BZRER R

(i) K2EEFENRE - RERE
B AR BB IFRITESRNE L
R RETRRAEFEHESTE
FRTER(BREBELIFNTES)
EEER -

Annual Report 2013 3§



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRSE

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established since
September 1997.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee comprised
three INEDs, namely:

Mr. Li Chak Hung (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Francis J. Chang Chu Fai (resigned on 27 January 2014)

Mr. Carlisle Caldow Procter (resigned on 27 January 2014)

As at the date of publication of this report, the Remuneration
Committee is made up of three INEDs and an executive
Director, namely:

Mr. Li Chak Hung (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Dr. Meng Xiaosu (appointed on 7 March 2014)

Mr. Anthony Yuen Koon Tung (appointed on 7 March 2014)

Mr. Liu Li (appointed as executive Director on 6 January 2014
and appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee
on 7 March 2014)

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice according to the Company’s
policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
are:

(i) to make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration policy and packages of the Directors
and, where appropriate, to consult the Chairman of
the Board and/or the CEO about the Remuneration
Committee’s proposals relating to the remuneration of
other Executive Directors;

(ii) to review and recommend Executive Directors’
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objectives;

(iii) to review and recommend the compensation payable to
Executive Directors relating to any loss or termination of
their office or appointment;

(iv)  to review and recommend compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for

misconduct; and

(v) to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding his
own remuneration.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company are in compliance with the code provision B.1.2 of
the CG Code, but with a deviation from the code provision that
the Remuneration Committee shall make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors only and not senior management (as opposed
to Executive Directors and senior management under the
code provision). The reason for the above deviations are
summarised as below:

(i) the Board believes that the Remuneration Committee is
not properly in a position to evaluate the performance of
senior management and that this evaluation process is
more effectively carried out by the Executive Directors;

(ii) all Remuneration Committee members are INEDs who
may not be industry skilled and come from differing
professions and backgrounds and they are not involved
in the daily operation of the Company. They may have
little direct knowledge of industry practice and standard
compensation packages. The Remuneration Committee
is thus not in a position to properly determine the
remuneration of the Executive Directors;

(i)  the Executive Directors must be in a position to
supervise and control senior management and thus
must be able to control their compensation; and

(iv) there is no reason for Executive Directors to pay senior
management more than industry standards and thus
Shareholders will benefit by reducing costs in the fixing
of such compensation packages.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year
in accordance with its terms of reference. One Remuneration
Committee meeting was held in 2013 and the attendance of
each member is set out in the section headed “The Board"” of
this report.
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In addition to the Remuneration Committee meeting, the
Remuneration Committee also dealt with matters by way of
circulation during 2013. In 2013 and up to the date of this
report, the Remuneration Committee performed the works as
summarised below:

(i) reviewed the existing policy and structure for the
remuneration of the Directors;

(ii) reviewed the performance of the Executive Directors;
and

(iii) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval
the service fees of the Directors.

Each Director will be entitled to a Director’'s fee which
is to be proposed for the Shareholders’ approval at the
AGM each year. Further remuneration payable to Directors
(including any service fees of the INEDs) for their additional
responsibilities and services will depend on their respective
contractual terms under their employment contracts or service
contracts as approved by the Board on the recommendation
of the Remuneration Committee. Details of the Directors’
remuneration are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements whereas detailed changes in the
emoluments of certain Directors during the interim period and
up to the date of the Interim Report were also disclosed in the
Interim Report of the Company dated 21 August 2013.

The Audit Committee has been established since September
1997. To retain independence and objectivity, the Audit
Committee is chaired by an INED with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

During the year, the Audit Committee was made up of three
INEDs, namely:

Mr. Li Chak Hung (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Francis J. Chang Chu Fai (resigned on 27 January 2014)

Mr. Carlisle Caldow Procter (resigned on 27 January 2014)
As at the date of publication of this report, the Audit
Committee is made up of three INEDs, namely:

Mr. Li Chak Hung (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Dr. Meng Xiaosu (appointed on 7 March 2014)

Mr. Anthony Yuen Koon Tung (appointed on 7 March 2014)
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The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice according to the Company’s policy if
considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

to consider and make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
qguestions of its resignation or dismissal,

to consider and discuss with the external auditor the
nature and scope of each year’s audit;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity;

to review the interim and annual consolidated financial
statements before submission to the Board;

to discuss any problems and reservation arising from
the interim review and final audit, and any matters the
external auditor may wish to discuss;

to review the external auditor's management letters and
management’s response;

to review the Group's financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems;

to review the internal audit plan, promote co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and check
whether the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Group; and

to consider major investigations findings on internal
control matters and management’s response.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are revised
from time to time to comply with the code provision C.3.3 of
the CG Code, but with deviations from the code provision of
the audit committee’s responsibility to:

(i) implement policy on the engagement of the external
auditors to supply non-audit services;

(ii) ensure the management has performed its duty to have
an effective internal control system; and

(iii) ensure co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, and ensure that the internal audit function
is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing
within the listed company.

The Board considers that the Audit Committee shall
recommend (as opposed to implement) the policy on the
engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit
services for the following reasons:

(i) it is proper and appropriate for the Board and its
committees to develop policy and make appropriate
recommendations;

(ii) the proper and appropriate mechanism for implementation
of such policy and recommendations is through the
Executive Director and management; and

(iii) INEDs are not in an effective position to implement
policy and follow up the same on a day-to-day basis.

Further, the Board considers that the Audit Committee only
possesses the effective ability to scrutinise (as opposed to
ensure) whether management has performed its duty to
have an effective internal control system. Where an internal
audit function exists, the Audit Committee is not equipped to
ensure that the same is in place as this would involve day-to-
day supervision and the employment of permanent experts.
The Audit Committee is not in a position either to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors but it can
promote the same. Similarly, the Audit Committee is not in a
position to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced but it can check whether it is adequately resourced.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year in
accordance with its terms of reference. Two Audit Committee
meetings were held in 2013 and the attendance of each
member is set out in the section headed “The Board” of this
report.

In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit
Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation during
2013. In 2013 and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee performed the works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees
proposed by the external auditor;

(ii) reviewed the reports from the external auditor in
relation to the final audit for the year ended 31
December 2012 (“2012 Final Audit”), the interim results
review for the six months ended 30 June 2013 (“2013
Interim Review"”) and the final audit for the year ended
31 December 2013 (“2013 Final Audit”) of the Group;

(iii) reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s approval
the financial reports for the year ended 31 December
2012, for the six months ended 30 June 2013 and for
the year ended 31 December 2013;

(iv) reviewed the effectiveness of internal control system
and risk management, including reviewed the internal
control review reports from the independent internal
control reviewer;

(v) reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s approval
the report on substantiation of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Group’'s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget; and

(vi) reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s annual
review the Related Party Transaction Policies and
Procedures, the Connected Transaction Policy and the
Whistle Blower Policy.
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CODES FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All
Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the
Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees to
regulate dealings in the securities of the Company by certain
employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries who are
considered to be likely in possession of inside information in
relation to the Company or its securities.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing,
with the support from the Finance Department, the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013, the accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong have been adopted and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which also include
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“Companies
Ordinance”) were complied with. The Directors believe that
they have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, and made judgments and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable and have ensured that the
consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company's external
auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”), are set out in
the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 54 to 55.

The purpose of the internal control systems is to keep the
Group on course towards achieving its performance and
profitability goals and its overall mission. The immediate aim
of internal control is to help to provide a reasonable level of
assurance that the Group will meet the agreed objectives
and goals. It has a key role in the management of risks that
are significant to the fulfillment of business objectives. It is
the Board's responsibility to review the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control systems and ensure that the controls
are sound and effective to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets at all times.
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During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Group's
external auditors, and non-audit services, is set out as follows:

RER - BEXN/ BN TAEEINEZE
B N IFZ BRI < 2 BT

HK$'000
Services rendered for the Group [B) 2N £ [ 4R {4 1Y PR 75 FExT
Audit services ZEH AR 961
Non-audit services HZBARTE 456
Total: &5t 1,417

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with the Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is
disseminated to the Shareholders in a timely manner through
a number of formal channels, which include interim and
annual reports, announcements and circulars. Such published
documents together with the latest corporate information and
news are also made available on the website of the Company.

The Company’'s AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to
communicate directly with the Shareholders. The Chairman
actively participates at the AGM and personally chairs the
meeting to answer any question from the Shareholders.
The chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee or in their absence,
another member of the respective committees or failing
that their respective duly appointed delegate, are also
available to answer questions at the AGM. The chairman
of any independent board committee formed as necessary
or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such chairman is
appointed, at least a member of the independent board
committee) will also be available to answer questions at any
general meeting of the Shareholders to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to
independent Shareholders’ approval.

The 2013 AGM was held on 4 June 2013. The attendance
records of the Directors at the general meeting are set out in
the section headed “The Board” of this report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings
for each substantial issue, including the re-election of retiring
Directors.
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The notice to Shareholders is to be sent, in the case of AGM,
at least 20 clear business days before the AGM and to be
sent at least 10 clear business days in the case of all other
general meetings. An explanation of the detailed procedures
of conducting a poll is provided to the Shareholders at the
commencement of the meeting. The Chairman answers
questions from Shareholders regarding voting by way of a poll.
The poll results are published in the manner prescribed under
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company can request the convening of a special
general meeting according to Bye-law 58 of the Bye-Laws and
Section 74(1) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (“Act”)
by written requisition, with the stated business proposed to be
transacted, which must be validly served at the head office and
principal place of business of the Company registered in Hong
Kong (“Head Office”). Besides, Shareholders may make a
proposal at a Shareholders’ meeting by submitting it in written
form to the Board at the Head Office in the form of a proposed
resolution, which shall be clearly and concisely set out the
proposal for discussion and be relevant to the Company's
business scope.

The Board established a shareholders’ communication policy.
A Shareholder may serve an enquiry to the Board at our Head
Office for the attention of the Board in written form, which
shall state the nature of the enquiry and the reason for making
the enquiry. In addition, Shareholders can contact Tricor Tengis
Limited, the share registrar of the Company, for any questions
about their shareholdings.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter
of applying and complying with the CG Code of the Stock
Exchange but also about promoting and developing an ethical
and healthy corporate culture. We will continue to review and,
where appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis
of our experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any
views and suggestions from our Shareholders to promote and
improve our transparency are also welcome.

On behalf of the Board

Zhou Zheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2014
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The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) presents
its annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries at 31 December 2013 are
set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 56 and in the accompanying notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend (2012: HK18.5 cents per share) or a special
dividend (2012: HK21.5 cents per share) for the year ended
31 December 2013. Details are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS OF MEMBERS AND
WARRANT HOLDERS

The 2014 AGM is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 12 June
2014. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote
at the 2014 AGM, the register of members and register of
warrant holders of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
10 June 2014 to Thursday, 12 June 2014 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares and warrants of
the Company will be registered. In order for a Shareholder
to be eligible to attend and vote at 2014 AGM, all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 9 June 2014.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements and reclassified/restated as
appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not form part
of the audited consolidated financial statements.

MR ENBE

TX R RfEska e A2 EERT R
RUBRBEEH IR EM2INZ2AEH
RBERBAMBRFE2XEREENRAE
ZHE - AR BY PERGELLRE T
HERz—8btn -

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1t—-HLEE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
“ER-=f T —_T——% _T-THF _TTHF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT FAET TAT TAT TAET
RESULTS E
REVENUE KA
Continuing operations SEICE R 142,507 153,940 133,056 106,801 101,311
Discontinued operations BRIHREER - - - 967,349 1,002,463
142,507 153,940 133,056 1,074,150 1,103,774
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE BT E B A
INCOME TAX A/ (FR)
Continuing operations SEICE RS 30,333 96,910 14,765 12,576 13,368
Discontinued operations BRIHEEER - - (1,493) 1,457,456 75,619
30,333 96,910 13,272 1,470,032 88,987
INCOME TAX CREDIT/ FiasER,/ (FA%)
(EXPENSE)
Continuing operations SEICE R (1,529) (920) (41) 74 (335)
Discontinued operations BRIHEEER - - - (6,723)  (12,727)
(1,529) (920) (41) (6,649)  (13,062)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR &2 AlH AL E
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS 3%,/ (B18)
OF THE COMPANY
Continuing operations BEICEER 28,804 95,990 14,724 12,650 13,033
Discontinued operations REASIR = - (1,493) 1,450,733 62,892
28,804 95,990 13,231 1,463,383 75,925
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31 December
+=A=+-H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
= —T——-F —T——F —T-LF ZTTHEF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TRET FAET FH FE TEL
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets s E 2,856,290 1,578,687 1,527,033 1,741,212 541,464
Total liabilities BEE 1,271,690 25,585 17,576 38,023 201,577
Total equity B 1,584,600 1,553,102 1,509,457 1,703,189 339,887
Total liabilities and total equity B ERiEzRBET 2,856,290 1,578,687 1,527,033 1,741,212 541,464
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT M -  BERRE
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment $El¢%% BEREERFARAZEEF

of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Details of movement in the share capital and outstanding
warrants of the Company during the year are set out in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 60 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the Company's reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 (as amended from time to time),
amounted to approximately HK$1,391,028,000 (2012:
HK$1,413,907,000).

BEFINARE M TSR 14 -
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company (”“Directors”) during the year
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Zhou Zheng (appointed as executive Director on 6 January
2014 and appointed as Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer on 27 January 2014)

Zhou Jin (appointed on 6 January 2014)

Liu Li (appointed on 6 January 2014)

Chan Tak Kwong (appointed on 6 January 2014)

Mark Wong Tai Chun (resigned as executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer on 27 January 2014)

Non-Executive Director:
Arthur George Dew (resigned as non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Board on 27 January 2014)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Li Chak Hung

Meng Xiaosu (appointed on 7 March 2014)

Anthony Yuen Koon Tung (appointed on 7 March 2014)
Francis J. Chang Chu Fai (resigned on 27 January 2014)
Carlisle Caldow Procter (resigned on 27 January 2014)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 86(2), Dr. Meng
Xiaosu and Mr. Anthony Yuen Koon Tung shall hold office until
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws 87(1) and (2), Mr.
Chan Tak Kwong and Mr. Li Chak Hung shall retire from office
by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM")
has an unexpired service contract with the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

All the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs")) were appointed for a
specific term of two to three years but subject to the relevant
provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company or any other
applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire
from their office.

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X;¥ BB iEAR AR AR
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2013, Messrs. Mark Wong Tai Chun and Li
Chak Hung, Directors, had the following interests in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO"), as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO:

EEZER
R-T—=#+-A=+—8 REE%
RERE 0] ([ B % R E P ) 35214
REMRGEZERMAR  EEIABKE
5 R EOR A S AR A B R AR A R
A RARBIR D (B3 B8 % R = 5015
XVED)fR 5 A T4l -

Approximate

Number of % of the
shares and relevant
underlying issued share Nature of
Name of Directors Name of companies shares held capital interests
BFERMKER LEBERITR
EEHRE YNCIE=E BROBME Az EIE HEME
Mark Wong Tai Chun the Company (Note 1) 143,043 0.06% Personal interests
BN g (EET) &l A #E 2=
Li Chak Hung SHK Hong Kong 6,000 0.00% Personal interests
R Industries Limited BAERS
(“SHK HK IND")
(Note 2)
IR EBRAT(E
TIE ) (FFE2)
Notes: B 5E
1. This represents an interest in 143,035 shares and 8 units of warrants of 1. ZAETRFE RN A 143,036 A% A% 1D K 810 iR A% 4E
the Company. B o
2. This represents an interest in 6,000 shares of SHK HK IND, a then fellow 2. ZHE#156,000 % TR & (RN AFE K2R
subsidiary of the Company. ZIB ARG 2 i o
3. All interests stated above represent long positions. 3. FiB Lzt B -

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2013, none of
the then Directors and chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

B EXREEN R -T—=F+_H
=t—B ARAERZZEERREST
A B #8850 AN ] Sk B AT ] AR B R B
(BEREZMBEHROIEXVER) ZEM[
Betn - MR REFFHEAALHERIR
BESZ S RGIEI2EREMFEZ
Bift SRBEEBARZABERAF]
(TB 22 )R8 L AR BRI (T L AR B 1) Y
BTAEc LMBETAESETESRRS
MIRETRIZARTTHREARNAR MBI
EfAIEEIAR
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following
Directors (not being the INEDs) are considered to have
interests in the businesses listed below which compete or are
likely to compete with the businesses of the Group pursuant to
the Listing Rules as set out below:

(i) Mr. Arthur George Dew is a director of each of Allied
Group Limited (“AGL"), Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited
("APL") and SHK HK IND which, through certain of their
subsidiaries, are involved in the investment in financial
instruments; and

(ii) Mr. Mark Wong Tai Chun is a director of each of
APL and SHK HK IND which, through certain of their
subsidiaries, are involved in the investment in financial
instruments.

Both Mr. Arthur George Dew and Mr. Mark Wong Tai Chun
resigned as Directors on 27 January 2014. Although the
above-mentioned Directors had competing interests in other
companies by virtue of their respective common directorship,
they fulfilled their fiduciary duties in order to ensure that
they acted in the best interest of the Shareholders and the
Company as a whole at all times. Hence, the Group was
capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at
arm’s length from, the businesses of such companies.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the year and as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors of the Company had any personal interests in the
options to subscribe for shares in the Company's former
ultimate holding company, AGL, granted under the share
option scheme of AGL nor in the warrants of the Company’s
former direct holding company, APL, to subscribe for the
shares of APL.

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X;¥ BB iEAR AR AR
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Save for the warrant holdings disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS

At 31 December 2013, the following Shareholders had
interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO:

B EXWEBEMFA 2 RBREREIN -

ZIN/N

A - HEERAR] - SEEAHE AR
AMBRANAFEAMELSBEIME
B BREFEZNLESAQRSEMEM
EANBR D AEFMESNE -

FTERREEMAL 2HES

RZZE—=F+ZA=+—H BREZEH
KEIEIGRDIFE 336 IR EMIFE 2 B
Frs - EEARE D AR ERZ
BRI

Approximate

Number of shares
and underlying

% of the relevant
issued share

Name of shareholders Nature of interests shares held capital Notes
RRERE EEME BEROREBER GEEBESRTRE  HHE
HEE ZHBABE DL

Knowledge Silicon Valley Interest of controlled 178,042,929 79.85% 1
Limited corporation

MBHEAFRAA REHNER 2 Em

Sheng Bang Holdings Interest of controlled 178,042,929 79.85% 1
Limited (“Sheng Bang") corporation

R BERAR([BH]) IEHEEZ#ER

Zhou Zheng Interest of controlled 178,042,929 79.85% 1

B corporation

ZEHER 2

COL Capital Limited Interest of controlled 21,208,800 9.51% 2
("COL Capital”) corporation

FEEKRERBRA A ZEHNER 2
([PEBEEAR])

Chong Sok Un Interest of controlled 21,208,800 9.51% 3
("Ms. Chong”) corporation

dEzem ([ HEt 1) ZEHNER 2

Notes: fisE -
1. This includes interests in (i) 166,165,776 shares of the Company; and 1. ZREFBERFREERAR DR ([ XFER

(ii) 11,877,153 units of warrants of the Company held by SkyOcean
Investment Holdings Limited (“SkyOcean Investment”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Knowledge Silicon Valley Limited. Knowledge
Silicon Valley Limited was owned as to 80% by Sheng Bang, which in
turn was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhou Zheng. By virtue of the SFO, each
of Mr. Zhou Zheng, Sheng Bang and Knowledge Silicon Valley Limited
was deemed to be interested in the shares and underlying shares
owned by SkyOcean Investment.

& |) A Knowledge Silicon Valley Limited
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2. This includes interests in 21,208,800 shares of the Company held by
Sparkling Summer Limited (“Sparkling Summer”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Classic Fortune Limited which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of COL Capital. COL Capital was therefore deemed, by virtue
of the SFO, to have an interest in the shares and underlying shares in
which Sparkling Summer was interested.

3. This represents the same interest of COL Capital in 21,208,800 shares
of the Company. COL Capital is beneficially owned by Vigor Online
Offshore Limited (“Vigor Online”) as to approximately 72.13%. Vigor
Online is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Spirit Limited (“China
Spirit”), a company wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Chong. Vigor
Online, China Spirit and Ms. Chong are therefore deemed, by virtue of
the SFO, to have an interest in such shares and underlying shares.

4. All interests stated above represent long positions.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 31 January 2011 and 5 November 2012 and the
2012 Annual Report of the Company, the Company
entered into a sharing of administrative services
and management services agreement (“Services
Agreement”) and a supplemental agreement thereof
("Supplemental Services Agreement”) with AGL, the
former substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company through its interest in APL, the
former controlling shareholder of the Company, on
31 January 2011 and 5 November 2012 respectively,
pursuant to which (1) the Company agreed to renew
and extend the terms of the sharing of management
services agreement dated 31 January 2008 for a period
of three years commencing from 1 January 2011 to 31
December 2013 in relation to the management services,
which included the management, consultancy, strategic
and business advice services provided by the senior
management and the selected staff of AGL to the
Group (“Management Services”); and (2) the Company
requested and AGL agreed to provide the administrative
services, which included corporate secretarial services,
provision of place to keep statutory books, office space,
utilities, courier and delivery, telephone (including
international telephone), internet, photocopying
and other ancillary office services to the Group
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(“Administrative Services”). The Company agreed to
reimburse AGL the costs incurred in respect of the
Administrative Services and the Management Services
provided by AGL to the Group. The annual caps for the
transactions in respect of the management services
under the Services Agreement and as amended by
the Supplemental Services Agreement thereafter
were HK$2,220,000, HK$3,400,000 and HK$3,500,000
respectively for each of the three financial years ended
31 December 2013. The total amount paid to AGL
for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 was
approximately HK$3,500,000.

Pursuant to an agreement (the “Extension Agreement”)
dated 30 December 2013 between the Company and
AGL, the term of the Services Agreement and the
Supplemental Services Agreement was extended for
one month from 1 January 2014 until 31 January 2014.
Nevertheless, the provision of Management Services
and Administrative Services under the Extension
Agreement was not considered as a connected
transaction under the Listing Rules as AGL had ceased
to be a connected person of the Company as from 30
December 2013.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 31 January 2011, the Company entered into an
insurance brokerage services agreement (“Insurance
Brokerage Services Agreement”) with Sun Hung Kai
Insurance Consultants Limited (“SHK Insurance”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai
& Co. Limited, which in turn is an associate of APL,
the then substantial shareholder of the Company and
hence a connected person of the Company as defined
under the Listing Rules, on 31 January 2011 pursuant
to which SHK Insurance agreed to provide packaged
insurance brokerage services to the Group for a term
of two years commencing from 1 January 2011 to 31
December 2012. SHK Insurance would assist the Group
in procuring insurance policies to be taken out with third
party insurers. The provision of such services by SHK
Insurance would be on SHK Insurance’s usual terms for
provision of the same services to an independent third
party and the premium for any insurance policy procured
would be the prevailing premium charged by SHK
Insurance to an independent third party when dealing on
an arm’s length basis having regard to any other special
circumstances such as arm’s length negotiated volume
discounts. The annual caps for the transactions under
the Insurance Brokerage Services Agreement were set
at HK$1,500,000 and HK$1,650,000 respectively for
each of the two financial years ended 31 December
2012.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 29 January 2013, the Insurance Brokerage
Services Agreement was subsequently renewed on
29 January 2013, pursuant to which the annual caps
for the transactions were set at HK$1,440,000 and
HK$1,800,000 respectively for each of the two financial
years ending 31 December 2014. The total amount of
insurance premium paid to SHK Insurance for the year
ended 31 December 2013 was HK$1,035,000.

The Insurance Brokerage Services Agreement is no
longer considered as a connected transaction for the
Company under the Listing Rules as SHK Insurance had
ceased to be a connected person of the Company as
from 30 December 2013.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 25 May 2012 and 4 July 2012, the Company
entered into a sub-tenancy agreement (“Sub-tenancy
Agreement”) with AP Administration Limited (“AP
Administration”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of APL, the former controlling shareholder of the
Company, in relation to the tenancy of portion of 9th
Floor of Allied Kajima Building, No. 138 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong commencing from 1
October 2012 and expiring on 28 February 2014. The
annual caps for the transactions in respect of the
tenancy under the Sub-tenancy Agreement were set
at HK$960,000, HK$1,690,000 and HK$290,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2012, year ending 31
December 2013 and for the period from 1 January 2014
to 28 February 2014 respectively. The total amount paid
to AP Administration for the financial year ended 31
December 2013 was approximately HK$1,706,000.

The Sub-tenancy Agreement is no longer considered
as a connected transaction for the Company under
the Listing Rules as AP Administration had ceased to
be a connected person of the Company as from 30
December 2013.
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As disclosed in the joint announcement dated 30
October 2013 issued by the Company and SkyOcean
Investment and the circular of the Company dated 6
December 2013, the Company, Sheng Bang Holdings
Limited (“Sheng Bang"”) and Zhou Zheng entered into
an acquisition agreement dated 15 October 2013 (the
“Acquisition Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Company agreed to purchase and Sheng Bang agreed
to sell the entire issued and fully paid-up share capital
of Skyleaf Holdings Limited at a consideration of
HK$450,000,000.

Since Zhou Zheng would become a controlling
shareholder and connected person of the Company
pursuant to a share purchase agreement which was
inter-conditional with the Acquisition Agreement,
and the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
Acquisition Agreement were more than 25% but less
than 100%, the Acquisition Agreement constituted
a major and connected transaction for the Company
and was subject to the approval of independent
shareholders.

A resolution approving the Acquisition Agreement was
passed at the Company’s special general meeting on
23 December 2013. Completion of the Acquisition
Agreement took place on 30 December 2013.

The transactions contemplated under the Services
Agreement as varied by the Supplemental Services
Agreement, the Insurance Brokerage Services
Agreement and the Sub-tenancy Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company
(“Continuing Connected Transactions”) under Rule
14A.14 of the Listing Rules, which are subject to the
reporting, announcement, annual review requirements
but are exempted from independent shareholders’
approval requirement. Details of the Acquisition
Agreement and the Continuing Connected Transactions
were published in the Company’s announcements and
circular as set out above and are included in this Annual
Report in accordance with the requirements of Rules
14A.45 and 14A.46 of the Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, INEDs of
the Company have reviewed the Continuing Connected
Transactions and have confirmed that the Continuing
Connected Transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company;

(ii) on normal commercial terms; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that were fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Continuing
Connected Transactions have been entered into in the
manners stated above.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the
Board of Directors has also received a letter from the
Company's auditor confirming that the Continuing
Connected Transactions:

(i) have received the approval of the Company's
Board of Directors;

(ii) had been entered into in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transactions;
and

(iii) have not exceeded the caps disclosed in the
relevant announcements.

The Continuing Connected Transactions also constitute
related party transactions of the Group during the
year which are detailed in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements pursuant to the requirements
under the Hong Kong Accounting Standard 24 and
falls under the definition of “continuing connected
transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements, where appropriate, in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

Details of the Directors’ and senior management emoluments
and of the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out
in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments payable to Directors will depend on their
respective contractual terms under their employment
contracts or service contracts as approved by the Board
on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to the Company's operating results, individual's
performance and comparable market statistics.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the
Group's five largest customers accounted for less than 30%
of the Group's total revenue for the year. The aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 55% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.
The purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
amounted to 17% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5%
of the Company's issued share capital, had a beneficial interest
in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Save for the Company’s purchases of its own shares on the
Stock Exchange as disclosed below, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company's shares on the Stock Exchange during the year
ended 31 December 2013.
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Aggregate
Number of consideration
shares Purchase consideration paid (before
Month repurchased per share expenses)
ENFRELLE
A& EfER B EE SREBEAE (FF ABAZ A
Highest Lowest
B=E BIKE
(HK$) (HKS) (HK$)
(&) (%) (%)
April 46,000 5.60 5.60 257,600
M A
May 1,572,000 5.90 5.60 9,264,380
A
1,618,000 9,521,980
DONATIONS B
The Group made no charitable donations during the year. REBRARFENREEHESER -
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TEER

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 20 to 38.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company's public float was less than the threshold
required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules upon the close of
the unconditional mandatory cash offers by CCB International
Capital Limited on behalf of SkyOcean Investment for all
the issued shares and outstanding warrants of the Company
(other than those already owned or agreed to be acquired by
SkyOcean Investment and parties acting in concert with it) on
27 January 2014, details of which are contained in the joint
announcement dated 27 January 2014 issued by the Company
and SkyOcean Investment. Trading in the Shares on the Stock
Exchange was therefore suspended from 28 January 2014, and
resumed on 11 April 2014 in view of the placing of Shares and
restoration of public float, details of which are contained in the
Company’s announcement dated 10 April 2014.
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Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of
this report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float
as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

BDO Limited ("BDO"), who had acted as the auditor of the
Company in the preceding years, resigned as the auditor of the
Company effective from 29 January 2014 and Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) were appointed as auditor of
the Company, following the resignation of BDO as auditor of
the Company. Deloitte shall hold office until the conclusion of
the next annual general meeting of the Company.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
have been audited by Deloitte.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual

general meeting to re-appoint Deloitte as the auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhou Zheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2014
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Deloitte.
=E

TO THE MEMBERS OF SKYOCEAN INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS ALLIED OVERSEAS LIMITED)

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
SkyOcean International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 56 to 132, which comprise the consolidated and
Company's statements of financial position as at 31 December
2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
35/F One Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BAGBAHE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2012 were audited by another auditor
who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on
15 March 2013.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEeRaRkAM2ERER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HEZE=—ZT—=F+_A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—_E—= T
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE FET FAET
Revenue A 5 142,507 153,940
Fair value (losses) gains on financial #FBIERIZATFEIEZ S
instruments at fair value through BT EZAFE(EER)R
profit or loss = (10,266) 54,285
Other income HA A 7 5,916 4,131
Staff costs 8 TN 9 (49,898) (56,317)
Change in inventories recognised ERERALZEEES)
as an expense (3,378) (3,516)
Depreciation e (1,188) (1,151)
Other expenses EMREY 9 (53,360) (54,462)
Profit before tax & F R A 30,333 96,910
Income tax expense A= 8 (1,529) (920)
Profit and total comprehensive FRRIREZEM AL
income for the year 9 28,804 95,990
Earnings per share BRER 13
Basic EA HK cents 1348l HK cents 46.7/&(ll
Diluted g HK cents 1221l HK cents 38,97l

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X3 BB 2A% B IR A &)



me PBIRR R

At 31 December 2013 R-—ZE—=F+-_A=+—H

2013 2012
—=E—= —E—_F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
I FHET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NERE 14 3,870 2,100
Goodwill EEES 15 1,358 1,358
Financial assets at fair value through #iBiEIZ AT EYEZ S
profit or loss BB E 17 568,444 626,449
573,672 629,907
Current assets REEE
Properties under development for ZERPFEMENHEMFS
sale and other inventories 18 1,693,133 3,320
Trade receivables B 5 R IE 19 1,571 1,074
Other receivables, deposits and Hah EUEIE « 1RE MTER
prepayments IR 20 28,842 23,674
Financial assets at fair value through #iBiEziZ AT EYEZ S
profit or loss BB E 24 14,821 =
Pledged bank deposits IRITHBER 21 13,932 13,811
Bank balances and cash RITHEBNIE S 21 530,319 906,901
2,282,618 948,780
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 & E M fE R B L fEET
and accruals IE 22 776,078 16,231
Deferred revenue EEWA 660 451
Tax payable JE 318 2,331 891
Loan from a related company KEEARNER
— due within one year ——F N2 25 310,342 -
1,089,411 17,573
Net current assets REEEFEE 1,193,207 931,207
Total assets less current liabilities BEER GBS E 1,766,879 1,561,114
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Financial liabilities at fair value FRBREATESEZ®
through profit or loss mEE 24 = 8,012
Loan from a related company KEBEATHNER
— due after one year — —F1&5H 25 182,279 -
182,279 8,012

NET ASSETS EEFE 1,584,600 1,553,102



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SREMBERRE

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
B sE FHET FAET

Capital and reserves RAK &S
Share capital A& A% 27 22,298 20,431
Reserves s 1,562,302 1,632,671
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,584,600 1,553,102

The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 132 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
20 March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Zhou Zheng
Director
BB
EF

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X3¥ BB A& AR A 7

FELEI1N2ZHRAVBRELEETTR
T-—NE=F -+ HIERKERNZE I
HTIEERRESE

Chan Tak Kwong
Director
EF



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
A QR M BMRRE

At 31 December 2013 RA=—ZE—=F+_-_A=+—H

2013 2012
—EB-=F —ZT—=F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
I THERT FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZIEE 16 588,415 34,443
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS BB A B RIR 16 388,302 576,753
976,717 611,196
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, deposits and HippE W =18 -« 24 RIAN
prepayments NIA 20 402 756
Bank balances and cash RITHER MRS 21 487,397 875,503
487,799 876,259
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals Hith i A~ 5108 K FE 5T ERE 989 2,910
Amounts due to subsidiaries U ENGIERE] 23 50,201 50,207
51,190 53,117
Net current assets REBEEFE 436,609 823,142
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,413,326 1,434,338
Capital and reserves BRAR #HE
Share capital i 27 22,298 20,431
Reserves ] 28 1,391,028 1,413,907
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,413,326 1,434,338

Annual Report 2013 ¥k



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEEZEDR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZE=-T—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

Share Share Dividend Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
A ROEE KRERE REEA #st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TR TR

At 1 January 2012 R-E——F—f—H 20,696 = 41,393 1,447,368 1,509,457

Profit and total comprehensive  EREF R 2 E KA L5

income for the year - - - 95,990 95,990
Final dividend proposed BRREBRE - - 37,798  (37,798) =
Special dividend proposed BRR RIS - - 43,927 (43,927 =
Dividend distributed E DK E = = (41,065) = (41,065)
Reversal of dividend arising from 88 @ i& {7 & 4 69 % B BE ]

repurchase of shares = = (328) 328 -
Repurchase of shares and BRIk RITE R E

exercise of warrants (note 27) (BtzF27) (265) - - (11,015)  (11,280)
At 31 December 2012 R-B-Z#+=A

=t+—H 20,431 = 81,725 1,450,946 1,553,102

Profit and total comprehensive — EREA R 2 EE A L%
income for the year = -

28,804 28,804

Dividend distributed BAERE - - (89.193) - (89,193
Underprovision of 2012 final —E - FERARERIR
and special dividend BRETE = - 7,468 (7,468) _
Repurchase of shares (note 27)  E&EI&A (fizE27) (162) (192) - (9,207) (9,561)
Exercise of warrants (note 27) 1Tl R R (Pt E27) 2,029 99,419 = - 101,448
At 31 December 2013 R-B-—=F+_-A1
=+-—H 22,298 99,227 - 1,463,075 1,584,600

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X3 BB 2% A R A &)



GREEERBR

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Bank interest income
Interest and investment income
from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss
Depreciation on property, plant
and equipment

Provision of allowance for doubtful

trade receivables

Provision of allowance for doubtful

other receivables
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Fair value losses (gains) on
financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss
Provision for obsolete stock
Transaction costs

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
Decrease (increase) in properties
under development for sale and
other inventories

Increase in trade receivables

(Increase) decrease in other
receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Decrease in trade and other
payables and accruals

Increase (decrease) in deferred
revenue

Interest and investment income
received

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid)
refunded

REEE

BR B A4 A

R

RITHBUA
XKBERBRmRATED
RZeEMBEEZNE R
REWA

ME - BERRETE

B 5 UG 2 R B
HAth FEUGR IR 2 R AR BB

HEME  BEEREZ
g
BBBRBEAFEIEKZ
EMITAZAVERERE
(%)

REFEERE

RFHRA

At EEES BB 2K E
REnE
LRAFHEMERE M
SR (gm)

B 5 FE W IRE N

H R - B MEM
R (3 o0 ) R >

B 5 A 5RIR N B Al e 3R
TR A 2 & S SRR
B AIE N CORLA)

BEUH B R E WA

REELXZHRS
(BEM)REFBFEH

Net cash from operating activities K& EHABRETHE

HE_Z—=F+"A=+—HIFE

2013
—g-=

HK$°000

F#T

NOTES

Bt &

30,333

(10,634)

(43,844)
1,188

60

308

10,266
679
38 2,580

(9,064)

676
(557)
(883)
(439)

209

56,330

46,272

(89)

46,183

2012
T4
HK$'000
FET
96,910

(13,987)

(41,415)
1,151
1133
20

276

(54,285)

(11,197)

(1,951)
(275)

37,431

107

37,538



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BERERB R

Investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Placement of pledged bank deposits

Bank interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Acquisition of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Net cash used in investing
activities

Financing activities

Exercise warrants

Dividends paid

Payment on repurchase of shares

Net cash from (used in) financing
activities

Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year,
represented by bank balances
and cash

REEH
Lo =N
BEYX  BELRE

FABEIRRITIER
EUERTTH B
HEME - BEERERE
A
WEEBBERRAFEK
ZEREE
HEBBBERRITFEIR
ZEBMEEMSRA

REZBFAREFR

BMEES
1T R E
EARL )
FE B B D 1 3%

BMEEE S (FTA)
2B EFE

RERERREEE
W R

REAZRERER
REEE

RERZBRERE
RREEE
ARIRITEBRERES

NOTES
P =

38

2013
—Egq—=

HK$°000

FET
(448,449)
(1,833)
(121)

34

4

(25,166)

50,072

(425,459)

101,448
(89,193)
(9,561)

2,694

(376,582)

906,901

530,319

2012
B
HK$'000
FAET

(1,389)
(10,811)

4

(168,255)

9,486

(170,965)

(41,065)
(11,280)

(52,345)

(185,772)

1,092,673

906,901



mE M BRI E

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ=—ZF—=F+=-A=1+—HILFE

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda. The address of its principal place of business
is 9th Floor, Allied Kajima Building, 138 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company's shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) were involved in the
provision of elderly care services, medical equipment
distribution, investment in financial instruments and
property development.

The immediate holding company of the Company
is SkyOcean Investment Holdings Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and beneficially
owned by Mr. Zhou Zheng and Ms. Zhou Jin by 80% and
20% respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

The name of the Company has been changed from
Allied Overseas Limited to SkyOcean International
Holdings Limited XFEIFR{ZERBRR A A effective on 21
February 2014.

RABBRERAERAR(ARA]L)
RERBREFTMAZNER
A R) » FE i EEEE 27 Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda > " A Al &= & &
EiE 2t BB A EBHFELTITE
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([BERRPT]) T e
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HEHfBAR (R (TAEE) X2
EEZRY  DHBERE W
BB TARMERR -

RKARZEEERARABRREB
BE Z Bt & 5T fit BX 32 Z SkyOcean
Investment Holdings Limited + %
AEEAREEREAERETESRA
H80% K&20% i °

REPTBRRIIARNRARNINGEE
HERTEMW -

N R Al 2 % W Allied Overseas
Limitede & SkyQcean International
Holdings LimitedX ¥ BIFR 2% 5 fR
A AZE-WHF_A-_+—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") that are relevant for
the preparation of the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2009 - 2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Consolidated Financial Statements,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) ~ Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production

Phase of a Surface Mine

Except as described below, the application of the new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

The Groups have applied HKFRS 13 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single
source of guidance for, and disclosures about, fair
value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is
broad: the fair value measurement requirements of
HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument items
and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value
(e.g. net realisable value for the purposes of measuring
inventories or value in use for impairment assessment
purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the
price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid
to transfer a liability, in the case of determining the
fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction in
the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions.
Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13
includes extensive disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In
accordance with the transitional provisions of HKFRS
13, the Groups have not made any new disclosures
required by HKFRS 13 for the 2012 comparative
period (please see notes 17, 24 and 31 for the 2013
disclosures). Other than the additional disclosures, the
application of HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS
1 “Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income”. Upon the adoption of the amendments to
HKAS 1, the Group’'s ‘statement of comprehensive
income’ is renamed as the ‘statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income’ and the ‘income
statement’ is renamed as the ‘statement of profit or
loss’. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to
present profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in either a single statement or in two separate but
consecutive statements. Furthermore, the amendments
to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made
in the other comprehensive income section such that
items of other comprehensive income are grouped into
two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that may
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated
on the same basis — the amendments do not change
the option to present items of other comprehensive
income either before tax or net of tax. The amendments
have been applied retrospectively, and hence the
presentation of items of other comprehensive income
has been modified to reflect the changes. Other
than the above mentioned presentation changes,
the application of the amendments to HKAS 1 does
not result in any impact on profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and total comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) — continued

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets'

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting’

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010 - 2012 Cycle*

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011 - 2013 Cycle?

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of
and HKFRS 7 HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures®
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities'
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

s Available for application — the mandatory effective date will
be determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are
finalised.

ks Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,

with limited exceptions.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the new
and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods or services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not they control an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
statement of financial position of the Company at cost
less any identified impairment loss.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for services provided in the normal
course of business, net of discounts.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Rental income from operating lease is recognised in the
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of
the relevant lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method, at the following rate per
annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 15% to 33':%
Furniture, fixtures and 15% to 33":%

office equipment

Medical equipment 20%
Computer equipment and 20% to 33":%
software

Motor vehicles 20% to 33"3%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. In the event that lease incentives are
received to enter into operating leases, such incentives
are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

NEEFRREEBREERZBRE
DR ERE R T AEAZE
g 9 SREMEE - AEMHE
X BEEHE -

AEEEREHEA

REMEZ RS WARERERZ
BAREENMESIER o

FEBEREEA
REMENFTRAREBANRER
HEERRFZ o W] LEEHE
AUESHERS  ZFEBER
BEER - EEBRENGENERE
EHRREERX

REREENRBER M BHRE
B AZEBEEE NI ZEE
(INE)ETZXZHEX 5B H
ZEREXRBEREBZNEEY
(ZERLEMETIERELE
ZEHE) LK - REEHR - LASH
HEEZEBRBEYEZAZER
MEREHIME - LINEETERESL
AT EZIFEEIRE N TEHB

B o
A

HHEKIEE RREEKIEE TE
HEERZER  REEAHMAEE
= RERR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
group entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the foreign
exchange reserve).

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
or state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered the service entitling them to the contributions.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from the profit before
tax as reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly to equity,
in which case the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Properties under development for sale which are
intended to be held for sale in the ordinary course
of business are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value and are shown as current assets.
Cost includes the cost of land, construction cost and
other development expenditure and other attributable
expenses. Net realisable value is determined by
management based on prevailing market conditions.

Other inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated and the Company’s statements of
financial position when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of
the two categories, including loans and receivables
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"). The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

Financial assets — continued
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including amounts
due from subsidiaries, trade and other receivables,
deposits paid, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).

Financial assets at FVTPL
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

Financial assets — continued
Financial assets at FVTPL — continued

o such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 "“Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets and is included in
the ‘other income’ line item. Fair value is determined in
the manner described in note 31.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

Financial assets - continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the counterparty;
or
o default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a trade and other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liabilities are either held for trading or those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

Financial liabilities and equity instruments -
continued

Financial liabilities at FVTPL — continued

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

° the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group's documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

Financial liabilities and equity instruments -
continued

Financial liabilities at FVTPL — continued

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest paid
on the financial liabilities and is included in the ‘other
income’ line item. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in note 31.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables, amounts due to subsidiaries, accruals
and loan from a related company) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Government
grants related to depreciable assets are recognised as
a deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant
asset in the consolidated statement of financial position
and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
Other government grants are recognised as income
over the periods necessary to match them with the
costs for which they are intended to compensate, on a
systematic basis. Government grants that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

In the application of the Group's accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are
required to make estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant
and equipment with respect to depreciation, the
management estimates the useful lives of various
categories of property, plant and equipment according
to experience of the usage of property, plant and
equipment and also by reference to the relevant
industrial norm. If the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment are less than the original estimates
due to changes in the commercial and technological
environment, such difference will impact the timing of
the depreciation charge in profit or loss and the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment. The carrying
amount of the property, plant and equipment are
disclosed in note 14.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

In determining whether allowances should be made for
the Group’s properties under development for sale as
disclosed in note 18, the Group takes into consideration
the current market environment and the net realisable
value which is determined as the estimated market
value (i.e. the estimated selling price less estimated
selling expenses) less estimated costs to completion of
the properties. An allowance is made if the estimated
net realisable value is less than the carrying amount.
If the actual net realisable value on properties under
development is less than expected as a result of change
in market condition and/or significant variation in the
budgeted development cost, material provision of
allowances for properties under development for sale
may result.

The Group makes allowances for doubtful debts based
on an assessment of the recoverability of trade and
other receivables. Allowances are applied to trade
and other receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful receivables
requires the estimation of future cash flows. Where
the expectation of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of trade and
other receivables and allowance for doubtful debts
in the year in which such estimate has changed. The
carrying amount of trade and other receivables are
disclosed in note 19 and 20.

No deferred tax asset has been recognized on the tax
losses as disclosed in note 26 due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred
tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBBRME
Revenue from rendering: TR LA T ARFS 2 A
Elderly care services HEEZ RS
Medical equipment distribution BEREDHE
Revenue from investment in financial & TEKEWA :
instruments:
Interest and other investment income & iBiBz5IR A F(ES
from financial assets at fair value R ERMEEZF
through profit or loss B RHEARE A
Interest income from bank deposits RITF R T B YA

Information reported to the Group’'s executive directors,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for
the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance focused on the types of goods or
services delivered or provided.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments under
HKFRS 8 are (i) elderly care services; (ii) medical
equipment distribution; (iii) investment in financial
instruments; and (iv) property development. In 2013,
the Group acquired properties under development for
sale as disclosed in note 38, which become a new
reportable and operating segment of the Group. The
properties under development for sale are commercial
properties for sale situated in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC"). Furthermore, structure of internal
reports provided to chief operating decision maker has
been revised subsequently to 30 June 2013. Under
the revised internal reports, a reportable and operating
segment under the title of “Investment in financial
instruments” was separated from the “Corporate &
other segments” and the remaining items included
in the “Corporate and other segment”, which relate
to unallocated items, have been re-presented as
unallocated items. Accordingly, comparative figures for
the prior year have been re-presented to conform with
current year presentation.

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THTT
84,368 93,922
3,695 4,616
43,844 41,415
10,600 13,987
142,507 153,940
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SREMBRRME
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. THER &
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue o] 8 HA ] AR 52 B PO @ 2 S R UR A &%
and results by the four segments for the period under HESWELMAT ¢
review.
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE-—Z—=F+-A=+—H1t
FE
Elderly Medical  Investment
care  equipment infinancial  Property
services  distribution instruments development Eliminations Consolidated
RER
EZihE BERGIE  SHIR  UEEE HE )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#n L TET Ti#n TEL AT
Revenue from external customer RESRER ZIMA 84,368 3,695 45,74 - - 133,804
Revenue from inter-segment* AERMA 132 - - - (132) =
Other income and gains (losses) Et AR (ER) 5,199 137 (9.724) - - (4,388)
Reportable segment revenue AREDEPA 89,699 3,832 36,017 - (132)  (129416)
Reportable segment results RENEEE 4,497 (2,846) 33,169 - - 34,820
Unallocated income N 8,74
Unallocated expenses AR (13,228)
Profit before tax BB 30,333
Income tax expense FEHRY (1)529)
Profit for the year ERER B
*  These figures are not included in revenue mentioned elsewhere * WEHRFTIEERNESEEMBRERE
in these consolidated financial statements and are eliminated on M ERD Pt 2 WA R - WL KRB
consolidation. Y48 o

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited Xj¥EIEIEEER AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. DEER &
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BFE-_FE—_—F£+=-BA=+—81t
FE
Elderly Medical ~ Investment
care equipment in financial

services distrbution ~instruments ~ Eliminations  Consolidated

EERE  BEXENH RENGRIE Fai )

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR ThL ThL Thn ThL

Revenue from external customer RENREF Z WA 93922 4616 41,653 - 140191

Revenue from inter-segment* PERMA* 144 - - (144) -

Other income and gains Al AR 3842 % 54,478 - 58,416

Reportable segment revenue BECHETIN 97,908 4712 96,131 (144) 198,607

Reportable segment resuls RENERE 598 (3.89%) 96,101 - 92,804

Unallocated income ROTMA 13749

Unallocated expense AOEFER (9,643)

Profit before tax e 96910

Income tax expense FERER %0

Profitfor the year ERat 95990

*  These figures are not included in revenue mentioned elsewhere
in these consolidated financial statements and are eliminated on
consolidation.

Revenue (including certain bank interest income) and
expenses (including certain staff remuneration, certain
depreciation and certain other operating expense) are
not directly related to each segmental activity.

* RERFTRERLEGA M HREL
fEB B R AR LIRS A B
B o

WA (BFEETRITHEWA) K5
X(BRETEIHM BETHE
RETHMEERS) WIFEERS
EDEEBER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

For the year ended 31 December 2013

6.

TRER-&

BE-2-=f+-A=t+—HL
FE

Elderly Medical ~ Investment
care  equipment infinancial Property
services  distribution  instruments  development  Consolidated
2R BEREIH RENGRIA NERR &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Tin Tin TEn Thn
Reportable Segment assets HRENFAE 30910 1145 627,231 1,702,907 2,368,193
Unallocated assets AOREE - - - - 488,097
Total assets e 30910 1145 627,231 1,702,907 2,856,290
Reportable segment liabilties EEChEEH 12,628 431 14 1,252,907 1,265,980
Tax payable i %4 = 2251 = 2331
Unallocated liabltes VA - - - - 33719
Total liabilities BEE 12,702 431 221 1,252,907 1,271,690
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE-—ZE——-—5+=-A=+—H1t
FE

Elderly Medical Investment

care equipment in financial
services distribution instruments Consolidated
EERE BEIHESE BREAGRIA e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET THET THET
Reportable segment assets RSN EEE 26,011 8,968 666,413 701,392
Unallocated assets Aol &E - - - 877,295
Total assets BEE 26,011 8,968 666,413 1,578,687
Reportable segment liabilities ARELEARE 10,513 815 8,024 19,352
Tax payable JESTIR 31 = 860 891
Unallocated liabilities AHWEE - - = 5,342
Total liabilities BEE 10,544 815 8,884 25,585

Other corporate assets (including certain bank balances
and cash, certain prepayments, deposit and other
receivables) and liabilities (including certain other
payables and accruals) are unallocated.

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited Xj¥EIEIEEER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. THER &
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE-E—=f+=-—A=+—81L
FE
Elderly Medical  Investment
care  equipment infinancial  Property
services  distribution instruments development Unallocated Consolidated
RER
EZNE BERBEAE  SHIR  UERE ) &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL Ti#n TR TEL Ti#n TR
Depreciation e 767 247 - - 174 1,188
Provision for obsolete stock REFERE - 679 - - - 679
Provision of allowance for doubtful trade B S el IE B A
receivables 60 - - - - 60
Loss on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEWE - BEREELZ
equipment, net BRE 12 29 - - - 308
Capital expenditures BARX 1,654 165 - - 14 1833
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE-Z——f+-H=t+—HL
FE
Elderly Medical  Investment
care  equipment in financial
services  distribution instruments  Unallocated  Consolidated
RER
BN BEXENH $RIA AR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TATL TATL TAL TATL
Depreciation & 672 336 - 143 1,151
Provision of allowance for doubtful other Eft U FARE R &
receivables 20 - - - 20
Provision of allowance for doubtful trade B 5ENEERE&E
receivables 133 - - - 133
Loss on disposal of property, plantand  £E£%% - BERREZER
equipment, net i 273 - - 3 276
Capital expenditures BARY 846 151 - 392 1,389
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SREMBRRME
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. THER &
All of the Group's revenue is derived from activities AEBMEVALHREVRES
and customers located in Hong Kong. The Group's non- ZEBEEREE KEBEFTBNK
current assets amounting HK$572,235,000 (2012: HK$ REARENME(THE]) D RIAE
629,907,000) and HK$1,437,000 (2012: Nil) are located 572,235,000 B L (Z T — — 4 :
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China 629,907,000 7t ) & 1,437,00078
(“PRC") respectively. T(ZE—ZF: T)2HRPE
& o
The largest external customer of elderly care services EEREHPENRZRARINKREFEG
segment accounted for 24.4% (2012: 22.4%) of the KEBIWA244%(ZFE——F :
Group’s revenue. 22.4%) °
7. OTHER INCOME 1. HMBA
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Bank interest income RITAI B WA 34 60
Management fee EIEE 542 193
Rental income HEUA 588 363
Subsidy incomes (note) G ONC D) 4,376 3,113
Other Hith 376 402
5,916 4,131
Note: Subsidy incomes have been received from Government Mizk : MW AREZERBEB DI T
for providing dementia services, infirmary services and R KRICERERE - BEkR
paramedical services under the elderly care services segment. PR %5 K & Bf B8 % R %5 i 2 BT IR
The subsidy incomes released have been matched with the oo ZE B 7 4 LA B ECAR R R K
costs to which they relate. There are no unfulfilled conditions e - Bz EM o MENRENX
or contingencies relating to these grants. Subsidy incomes 2 INEERSKAIEE o FTE
received for which related expenditure has not yet been ZREBRAENREEESHEE
undertaken are included in deferred income in the consolidated wE - RIgG AREHMBRART
statement of financial position. ZIEEWAIEE o

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited Xj¥EIEIEEER AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. FrEBMAxX
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax: RERFIIR -
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BRENEH -
Current year REE 1,582 920
Overprovision in prior years BEFEHEE
BiE (53) =
1,529 920
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the BEBNERIRF NEEHERTE A
estimated assessable profit for both years. LA16.5% < FREFTHE °
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the FABEEREGaERRAME
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit HRAR 2RI MEBRAT
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:
2013 2012
—Eg—= ZE==
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Profit before tax & B BT a1 30,333 96,910
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of ZF&MEHH X16.5%
16.5% (2012: 16.5%) "% :165%) 5,005 15,990
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A HIF: 5 2 FiiE s £
for tax purposes 2,635 198
Tax effect of income not taxable for HERHWA Z B2
tax purposes (7,533) (16,812)
Tax effect of tax losses not RIERTIAREE 2
recognised M E 2,202 2,317
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B)FREAIARIER 2
recognised HIAEE (510) (170)
Overprovision in prior years SR F S BRE R (53) —
Others HAh (217) (603)
Tax charge for the year FEANTHIEE A 1,529 920
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRME

9.  PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

9. AEFEERF

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Profit for the year has been arrived A% E &K (5HA)
at after charging (crediting): IE-S=
Auditor’'s remuneration ZE RN €
Current year REE 961 280
(Over)underprovision in prior year B (FBEEEE) R
BT (78) 16
883 296
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BMEMEREZ
plant and equipment g 308 276
Operating lease payments KEHENREAR
in respect of
Rented premises BEHEYE 26,242 31,140
Equipment Ba] 61 52
26,303 31,192
Net foreign exchange loss, net b X 518 5 58 2,802 76
Provision of allowance for doubtful & 5 & Uk I8 R BR B
trade receivables 60 133
Provision of allowance for doubtful — E {ih &l k18 R AR B
other receivables - 20
Staff costs, including directors’ ETKA  BIEEEE
emoluments
Salaries and other benefits costs Ha M H MR A 48,195 54,247
Retirement benefit costs IRRAE FI B AR 1,703 2,070
49,898 56,317

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X3¥ BB A& AR A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
10. DIVIDENDS 10. RRE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Dividends proposed BORAR S
Final dividend of nil (2012: HK18.5  KREIREERLBERNT
cents) per ordinary share (ZZ—=%F :18.545(l) — 37,798
Special dividend of nil (2012: R SR ARGnZE
HK21.5 cents) per ordinary share (ZZ——%F :21.55(0) - 43,927
Reversal of dividend arising from BERNEHRREEE
repurchase of shares = (328)
Underprovision of 2012 final and —E——FREA NI
special dividend ERETE 7,468 -
7,468 81,397
Dividend paid BEXARE
2012 Final dividend of HK18.5 cents —Z——FXxHREEFK
(2011: HK17.4 cents) per ordinary LmAR18.58(=F
share ——4F 1 17.474) 37,798 35,727
2012 Special dividend of HK21.5 —E-—EEFIRESR
cents (2011: HK2.6 cents) per @21 58 (=F
ordinary share ——& 1 2.658l) 43,927 5,338
Underprovision of 2012 final and —E——FRI AR
special dividend BBETR 7,468 -
89,193 41,065
The proposed final and special dividends for the HE-_ZE——F+-_A=+—H1t
year ended 31 December 2012 have been approved F G R bR R B R A B IR B R AN 4R
during the current year and they were reflected as EEENE HBERREE_ZT
appropriations of retained profits for the year ended 31 —=F+-A=t+—HIFEZR
December 2013. BB R RER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 11. EEZERTHEITME

EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the BT EN R EE RITRAEE 2 B
Directors and the chief executive were as follows: ST
2013
“B-ZF
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonuses contributions Total
I BHER
EZHE AR BERAL SRR @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR Thn TAn TAn TAn
Mr. Li Chak Hung FEERE 125 - - = 125
M. Francis J. Chang Chu Fai gEBEiE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Carlisle Caldow Procter Carlisle Caldow Procter/t 100 - - - 100
Mr. Mark Wong Tai Chun (“Mr. Wong")*  EA$% 4 ([ E54])* - 878 480 44 1,402
Mr. Arthur George Dew (“Mr. Dew")*  HhEE&SA (T4 )* - 497 575 - 1,072
325 1,375 1,055 44 2,799
2012
“E-—F
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total
B R RINET]
ESHS HffER HigEa EIE 158 &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL TAL TAL TET TAT
Mr. Li Chak Hung FEERE 121 - - - 12
Mr. Francis J. Chang Chu Fai [f =4ty 97 - - - 97
Mr. Carlisle Caldow Procter Carlisle Caldow Procterfc 97 = - - 97
Mr. Mark Wong Tai Chun (“Mr. Wong")*  FA$% 4 ([ E5%4E])* - 850 448 4 1,340
Mr. Arthur George Dew (“Mr. Dew")*  Thesikd([MhkE£])* - 475 540 - 1,015

315 1,325 968 42 2,670

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited Xj¥EFRIEAR AR A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
11. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS - continued

*

On 31 January 2008, the Company entered into an agreement (the
“Sharing of Management Service Agreement”) with Allied Group
Limited (“AGL"), pursuant to which the Company has agreed to
reimburse AGL the costs incurred in respect of management,
consultancy, strategic and business advice services provided by
certain senior management and selected staff of AGL including
Mr. Dew and Mr. Wong to the Group for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2008 (the “Management Service
Fee"). The Management Service Fee was determined with
reference to the percentage of time that Mr. Dew and Mr. Wong
devoted to the affairs of the Group against the amount of time they
devoted to the affairs of AGL. On 31 January 2011 and 5 November
2012, the Company entered into a sharing of administrative and
management services agreement (the “Sharing of Administrative
and Management Services Agreement”) and a supplemental
agreement thereof (the “Supplemental Services Agreement”)
respectively with AGL, to renew and extend the terms of the
Sharing of Management Services Agreement which agreed that
the fees payable by the Group to AGL for the three financial years
ending on 31 December 2013 in respect of the Management
Services shall not, unless otherwise agreed by the parties,
exceed the sum of approximately HK$2,220,000, HK$3,400,000
and HK$3,500,000 respectively. Further details of the Sharing of
Management Service Agreement, the Sharing of Administrative
and Management Services Agreement and the Supplemental
Agreement are set out in announcements of the Company
dated 1 February 2008, 31 January 2011 and 5 November 2012
respectively.

The apportioned amounts of the fee attributable to Mr.
Dew and Mr. Wong included in the above table are
HK$1,072,000 (2012: HK$1,015,000) and HK$1,402,000
(2012: HK$1,340,000) respectively for the year ended
31 December 2013.

Mr. Wong is also the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the chief executive.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the Directors
waived any emoluments for both years.

11.

EERITHEARMES &

* RZEEN\F—A=+—H AAAH
BMESEBRAR([HEERE]) T —
BEipE((BEERESBHE]) - KRt -
ARARBEREEMNBHAEERESRE
BERHEFAGEAS - HPBEKEER
FhRAERMAEEIRHEER - BN - KK
HEREBERZBRGEEZERA(E
BREE])  ARSHHE-"TTNFE—A
—BRIRREHA=F - EBRBEIZR
KEERERERNEB 2 BB H
R BEEERBEEE 2 EBKHM
NEZEERBEILMEE - R=T——
E—A=+—HFK-_ZFE——F+—AF
B - ARAESDBIEK A EET TR K
EERBOBBR([THRREERE D
) REdExnE([HERE B
#) o NEFTREREERS D &%
ZFEH - BUHRAE  BRIELTHNERR
B GUAEERBE_Z—=F1+=
A=+—BAL=EVBREESRIHE
BRESN FHEEENERTSERB
#72,220,000 78 Jt * 3,400,000 /& Tt &
3,600,000/ 7T ° SIS D #EpaE - 1T
BREBRBESBHZERBARS HE
ZE—SHBEIRARR BRI A
—TEN\F-_A—H - —_FT——F—A4
=t—-BR-_ZFE——HF+—ARABAZA
A °

BE-_Z—=F+-_A=+—81t
EE RALREORENELAR
FhAEZERD A A1,072,000%8
JT(=ZZF— =4 : 1,015,000/ 7t)
} 1,402,000 L (=& — 4 :
1,340,000/ 7T) °

FEEMBARBITHAAE - £X
PR BEEF & BRMBIERITRAE
BATREREOH T -

MEFEAR @ TREHEIEMES
BEREWERETHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME

12. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 12. EEEM
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments AEBAMNGZEHALTBEERUE
in the Group, two (2012: two) were Directors and the B(ZZE——F : M) RARQaE1T
chief executive of the Company whose emoluments AR (B2 MeWERD XXMzt
are included in the disclosures in note 11 above. The M) e BR=((ZFTE——F: =
emoluments of the remaining three (2012: three) f)&EEHALOT :

individuals were as follows:

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTAT
Salaries and other benefits He REMEF 2,628 2,527
Discretionary bonuses I IFIEAT 438 369
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R Kk#@FIEH 24t 2k 45 41
3,111 2,937
2013 2012
—E—=F —E2——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Bands: FNEE
HK$500,001 - HK$1,000,000  500,001/%&7CZ 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ c% 1,500,000 7T 2 2
3 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

13. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 13.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

EXR @ ESRAER
AR BB ARG SRR A R
BRI TYRBU T BIREHH -

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
Earnings 2%
Profit for the year for the purpose BT EGRER G EER
of basic and diluted earnings per Rz REFE % F
share 28,804 95,990
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
‘000 ‘000
T & TFhx
Number of share BRoEHE
Weighted average number of share Bt EERER N #EE
for the purpose of basic and F 2 DOkEF AR &
diluted earnings per share 215,010 205,598
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BB :RIRAEE 2 #5811
shares in respect of warrants TERCTE 21,103 41,392
Weighted average number of et EERESERF 2 M
ordinary shares for the purpose of #2315 & @A SR
diluted earnings per share 236,113 246,990
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REe B MRMEE
14.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 4. W% BERRE
Furniture,
fixtures Computer
Leasehold and office Medical equipment and
improvements equipment equipment software  Motor vehicle Total
fA - EBR ERRER
BENZEE  BOERB BERAE #t L] szt
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
TERL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
THE GROUP KEE
COST A
At 1 January 2012 R-E-—%-f-H 42,676 8821 1,048 2192 = 54,737
Additions AE 181 319 38 851 - 1,389
Disposals e (8,938) (2979 (157) (1,086) - (13,160)
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—F+-R
=t-H 33919 6,161 929 1,957 - 42,966
Acquisition of subsidiaries  WEEHBA - 459 - - 978 1437
Additions AE 901 856 4 7 - 1,833
Disposals hE (610) (247) (53) (6) - (916)
At 31 December 2013 R=E—=F+-F
S 34,210 7,229 880 2,023 978 45,320
DEPRECIATION it
At 1 January 2012 R=%-—F-A-H 41,904 7,904 990 1,797 - 52,595
Depreciation Vil 419 344 vk} 366 - 1,151
Eliminated on disposals ~ HEE (8,938) (2,737) (145) (1,060) - (12880
At 31 December 2012 RZZ-—F+-A
=+-f 33,385 5511 868 1,102 - 40,866
Depreciation ik 378 349 2 439 - 1,188
Eliminated on disposals HERLH (393) (152) (53) (6) - (604)
At 31 December 2013 —Z-Z%51ZA
=t-H 33310 5,708 837 1,535 - 41,450
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+-F
=t-f 840 1,521 43 488 978 3810
At 31 December 2012 R=E——F+-A
=+-A 534 650 61 855 - 2,100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

Cost at 1 January and 31 December W—A—HK+—=A

=t+—HZKAK
Impairment at 1 January and R—A—BRKE+=A
31 December =t+—HZRE
At the end of the year FR

Goodwill acquired through business combination has
been allocated to an elderly care home cash-generating
unit (the “Tuen Mun Elderly Care home CGU") within
the elderly care services segment for impairment
testing.

The recoverable amounts for the Tuen Mun Elderly
Care Home CGU was determined based on value-in-
use calculations covering detailed five-year cash flow
projections followed by extrapolation of expected cash
flows at growth rates at 3% (2012: 3%) per annum
and discount rate of 14% (2012: 14%). The growth
rates reflect the long-term average growth rates for the
service line of this cash generating units. The discount
rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant units.

The key assumption of budgeted revenue and result
of operation has been determined based on the past
performance of the Tuen Mun Elderly Care Home CGU
and management’s expected market development.

THE GROUP
KEE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
8,268 8,268
(6,910) (6,910)
1,358 1,358

EREEAHERSZHBCKIR
TREERBEDEA —EEELR
ReELEM([BREERRESE
B EITRIERIR

B EERECEESMZ AT RE
BENVREREFEZAFHSRE
TR FREAEREFEERI%(=
T—F :3%) RIFEER14% (=
T——F : 14%) HEHBH R SR
SMET - BWERRKRMILIESES
BURBHENZRRFHEER o
EFEANITREARBATITIRE
Wi EREEIR S EE BN EREM
FEEER o

WARBEXBERENTIEZEBRTY
RIBHEFIEERRECELEMNB
EXRBMERENAATHERM
B -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRME

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS 16.

DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

RELR2RE IR
i B 2 R SRR

THE COMPANY

ARAF
2013 2012
—EBE—=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
Unlisted shares, at cost E TR - ERAAE 484,443 34,443
Deemed capital contribution WA EEE 103,972 -
588,415 34,443
Amounts due from subsidiaries = NGI ] 804,583 973,611
Impairment RIE (416,281) (396,858)
388,302 576,753

* Accumulated impairment of HK$416,281,000 (2012:
HK$396,858,000) was recognised for certain amounts due from
subsidiaries because certain subsidiaries have been loss-making
for some time and certain amounts due from subsidiaries are
considered not to be recoverable.

The amounts due from subsidiaries were interest-free,
unsecured and had no fixed term of repayment. The
Company had agreed not to demand for repayment at
least 12 months from the end of the reporting period.
The amounts due from subsidiaries bear imputed
interest and is determined based on Hong Kong Prime
Rate plus 1.04% per annum.

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 39.

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X3¥ BB A& AR A 7

* BHRETHBER Ta*ﬁ‘ Exﬁ—irfﬁﬁﬁig
g BETRKKHEARREREAT
AU E - aﬂzlut?dc%ﬂﬁéuizm%@i
BHERZR(ES16,281,0008 L (==
— 4 : 396,858,000 L) °

B ARRBARE « EIKH
FEETEERE - AQRIRE AR
EHRBHEL T —EARTEE
SRR o FEURH B D R SR IER (BT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUETHROUGH 17. Z#BEZE LA FEIEREZ
PROFIT OR LOSS eWMEE
THE GROUP
AEEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Listed debt securities designated at §7E A& BiEzsiR A FE
fair value through profit or loss FIERZ FTHESE
Hong Kong i 142,083 135,111
Outside Hong Kong BB AR 389,031 453,953
531,114 589,064
Unlisted equity securities BE RSB BERZATE
designated at fair value through PR 2 3E ETARA B 5
profit or loss
Outside Hong Kong BB AR 37,330 37,385
At the end of the year RER 568,444 626,449

The Group designated all these investments in listed
and unlisted securities as at fair value through profit or
loss on initial recognition. There were no specific terms
for the unlisted equity securities while key terms of the
listed debt securities are coupon interest rate of 4.625%
to 13.5% (2012: 4.625% to 13.5%) with maturity of
year 2015 to 2021 or perpetual (2012: 2015 to 2021 or
perpetual).

The fair values of the debt and equity securities have
been determined by reference to their bid prices at the
reporting date provided by the brokers, which were
derived based on vendors quotes and/or published
rates from Bloomberg/Reuters/Traders, and have been
translated using the spot foreign currency rates at the
end of the reporting period where appropriate.

As at 31 December 2013, certain listed debt securities
designated at fair value through profit or loss with
carrying amount of approximately HK$267,600,000
(2012: HK$326,922,000) have callable options.

AEBEE2F EMEIELETES
ZIEEBEERVISHRRFERBIB
@B AFEIER o IE ETRAE
FUEFEMRR - M ETEFES
LEBBRRAEBMHEL625%F
136% (=T —_4F : 4625% &
1356%) ' B HA-_T—HE&EE
—E - —FRKA(ZE—ZF :
—E—RFE_T=—FFHPKA) e

EBRRARS Y ATENSEE
EFTRE Y B A B AEMET
MZEABEEETARER &
2l HEN S RSB AMGER
W B A R Bk 2 B E
Y -

RZE—=%+=—A=+—H ' &
TERME{E#A)A267,600,0007 7T( =
T — 4 : 326,922,000/ 7T) 2 8
ERBEBEREATERZ EH
18 755 78 5 P A5 ] 12 7 0 o) A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

18. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE 18.
AND OTHER INVENTORIES

THE GROUP
AEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THETT
Properties under development for sale BREREHNEZME
(note) (BI&E) 1,691,168 -
Medical equipment BERE 1,965 3,320
At the end of the year FR 1,693,133 3,320
Note: The Group's properties under development for sale are fist: AEBZREPSEYWEMRNH
situated in the PRC. Included in the amount are properties cBBEPEEYEILSEBTE
under development for sale of HK$576,414,000, which are not 576,414,000/ 7T * TEEAN RS HAR
expected to be completed and available for sale within twelve RETT AR NIRRT R AIHEE -
months from the end of the reporting period.
19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. EZEWRIE
THE GROUP
rEE
2013 2012
—E-—=fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Trade receivables =Y A& R 1,888 1,331
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RIREAE (317) (257)
1,571 1,074

Customers of the elderly care services in general are
required to pay fees in advance. Trade receivables of
the Medical Equipment Distribution Segment generally
have 30 day’s credit terms. No interest is charged to the
Group’s business-related customers. The Group has a
credit policy in place, and exposures are monitored and
overdue balances are reviewed by senior management
on an ongoing basis.

The following is an analysis of trade receivables by age,
presented based on invoice date, and net of allowance
for doubtful debts at the end of the reporting period:

EERBEE —REEEHER -
BREREDHENE SR KR -
—RABI0AZEEH - REEYLE
AEBRREE S EIAE - AEE
REEERE 2R EREeRE
ERER MR aEeR o

AT A & BIR 8 5 MR IR 2 IR
e i (IR RIREME) » REBEERE
BHEES ¢

2013 2012

—Eg—= —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&xT FHET

Current to 30 days BIEAZ=30H 1,142 653
31 to 60 days 31260H 349 326
61 to 90 days 61£290H 60 74
91 to 180 days 912180H 20 21
1,571 1,074
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

Included in the Group's trade receivables are debtors
with a carrying amount of HK$873,000 (2012:
HK$968,000) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss. As debtors which are past due but
not impaired related to a large number of independent
customers that have a good track record of credit with
the Group, the amount are considered recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over theses
balances.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

Current to 30 days BNEAZ30H
31 to 60 days 31£260H
61 to 90 days 61290H
91 to 180 days 91£180H

At each reporting date, the Group's trade receivables
are individually and collectively reviewed to determine if
impaired. The amount of impairment loss of individually
impaired receivables, if any, are recognised based on
the credit history of its customers, such as financial
difficulties or default in payments. Consequently,
specific impairment provision is recognised.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:

Balance at beginning of the year
Amount written off i 55
Impairment losses recognised

Balance at end of the year

REF) 2 %8R
BRI EE 1B

RE R 2 K85

NEBE S ERFBRERIRE S
RE|ERBR (A &873,0008 T (=&
— 4 : 968,000/ 7T ) Z & (A&
EBH AR RBEEE) - HRE
B HAB R RE 2 [E5 A B K 3P
DEECHRTNBYEFER
WMAEBABHRE AT WE - NEH
WEE XSG 2 (KA o

AHMERBEE 5 B UER 2 BR ik
DT

2013 2012
—E-= —ET——F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
444 547

349 326

60 74

20 21

873 968

AEERNE @RS B HBE R MR
EHEZIRNUFE  UEEERSE
HIRIBE - 85 H IR E Z YR
BZREBESBENE) HERE
Pz 8 B 8 (a0 B I R B sl R
B TIARER - BEERSHERRSE
B o

RERBEEZHAOT -
THE GROUP
KM

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THR
257 216
= (92)
60 133
317 257



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRME
19. TRADE RECEIVABLES - continued

20.

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables
represents a provision for individually and collectively
impaired trade receivable of HK$317,000 (2012:
HK$257,000) with a carrying amount of HK$873,000
(2012: HK$968,000). Such provision was determined
based on evidence of impairment on both individual and
collective basis. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over the impaired trade
receivables whether determined on an individually or
collective basis.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS

19.

20.

ESEWRIE &

LA -2 5 SRR BB EIE LR
M {873,000 L(=F — —4F :
968,000/ 7T ) 2 &l 5l ;R &= B8R (B &
S EW R IEEH317,0008 T (=F
— —4F : 257,000 7T ) 2 8 1E B
& - ZBETREER RERRE
FBIEMETE o N5 B3 4 5t & Bl 5k
ERETAERECEZERFIE
BETMERARSIEMAAERZ
IRBE ©

HthBWFHIE - REK A
NE/S

THE GROUP
REE
2013 2012
== —E— 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FET
Other receivables H fib pe I 3k I8 13,511 15,650
Deposits paid BfiiEe 14,509 7,566
Prepayment B FRIE 822 458
28,842 23,674
THE COMPANY
KATF
2013 2012
—E-—=fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other receivables H b fE W Sk IE 26 407
Prepayment TEfT B 376 349
402 756
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
21. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK 21. $TIEHFAREBITEER
BALANCES AND CASH LLRIRE
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the RITEB B S BEAEEMIFER
Group and short-term deposits with an original maturity S REFHBA=@ASIARNZE
of three months or less. BT K o
The range of effective interest rates of bank balances at R-_ZE—=F+-_A=+—8 &
31 December 2013 is 0.33% to 2.17% (2012: 0.66% to THBZEBREMNENF0.33%
2.26%) per annum. E217% (T ——%F 1 066%=E
2.26%) °
The range of effective interest rates of bank balances at R-TE—=F+_-_A=+—H8 &
31 December 2013 is 0.33% to 1.30% (2012: 0.70% to THEBZEREMNENF0.33%
1.43%) per annum. £2130%(ZZE—ZF 1 070% =
1.43%) °
Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to RITHEBFRIEEMBITEE 2
banks to secure general short-term banking facilities FRIEAAERERZ —RE
granted to the Group and therefore classified as current BRSR1TREE 2R - Atk 5 fa
assets. The range of effective interest rates of the BRHEE R Z—=F1+_#8
pledged deposits at 31 December 2013 is 0.66% to =+—8 BERERZERFENE
0.7% (2012: 0.66% to 1.00%) per annum. NF0.66%ZE0.7%(=ZF——4F :
0.66%%E1.00%) °
22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 22 EBESRHMENRERE
ACCRUALS FTRIE
THE GROUP
AEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Trade payables B ZENIA 751,920 1,103
Other payables, accruals and deposits H b FERTFRIE ~ FERT
received SRR B WIZE 24,158 15,128
776,078 16,231

The ageing of trade payables based on invoice date is
0 to 90 days. The average credit period on purchase
of goods is 90 days. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables
are settled within the credit timeframe.

BHREMNFARBESE B M Rk
BOEWR - REEMZFHEER
Hi/3908 - AREHEMBERE
B - AERATE BN SRIBRE
BEMARE -

Annual Report 2013 £



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
23. AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES 23. KB BFKIE
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and had no ZEFEAERE  RENEET
fixed term of payment. IR o
24. FINANCIAL ASSETS (LIABILITIES) AT FAIR 24. iﬁé@?ﬁﬁ_ﬁ}}ﬁﬂqzﬁﬂ,ﬂﬁz
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS TREE(RR)
THE GROUP
rEH
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Foreign currency forward contract HNEE SR HR S 4Y 14,821 (8,012)
The foreign currency forward contract was entered REBERTINERIIE A - # LA
to mitigate the foreign currency risk arising from an FERRAEERAEBEREATE
investment in a debt security designated as financial FiR 2 2B E EMAN —IBEEE
assets at fair value through profit or loss category (note FIRE 2 HNE R (MaE17) (LA
17) denominated in Australian Dollars (“AU$"). The T(RITDEE) - INEEBIE R
foreign currency forward contract was not designated W EEE R EFTIB T 28HRT
as a hedging instrument under hedge accounting. B oRBEHR ~EBE—1H
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RREINERBELN  BEEE
one outstanding foreign currency forward contract #24,360,00008 0 ( ZF — =4 :
with a notional amount of AU$24,360,000 (2012: 24,360,000)27T) ° & KRN 2 5
AU$24,360,000). The contract was subject to gross HE84&E  RNREBERZATE
settlement at maturity date and were measured at fair FTE o MIEAFE ZINERIBEH 2
value at the end of the reporting period. The major FEEFIT
terms of this foreign currency forward contract for both
year is as follows:
Notional amount Maturity date Exchange rate
EREHE E L= E=x
Sell AU$24,360,000 7 January 2014 AU$1/HK$7.523
i £24,360,000382 7T —T-NFE—A+H 1RIT,7.52387T
The fair value of the contract has been assessed by a ZEHNNATE  TTHELFER
firm of independent professional valuers, Greater China BETEEFTEAR ARG -

Appraisal Limited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

Loan from a related company
P

HIA

Less: Amount due within one year show i : —F A ZE|H]
BT
BEET)

under current liabilities

Amount due after one year

At 31 December 2013, the loan from a related company
of RMB387,313,000 (equivalent to HK$492,621,000) is
a variable-rate borrowing, unsecured, bears interests at
130% of the three-year stated lending rate published by
the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC") and is repayable
by four instalments from April 2014 to October 2015.

The loan was borrowed from SkyOcean Real Estate
(Qian'an) Co., Ltd., a company in which Mr. Zhou Zheng
and Ms. Zhou Jin, who have been appointed as directors
of the Company on 6 January 2014, have beneficial
interest of 80% and 20% respectively.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has PRC income
tax losses of HK$28,995,000 (2012: nil) at the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets has not
been recognised in respect of these tax losses due
to unpredictability of future profits streams. The PRC
income tax losses of HK$8,178,000 and HK$20,817,000
will expire in 2017 and 2018 respectively.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of HK$51,339,000 (2012:
HK$41,085,000), subject to the agreement by the Hong
Kong Inland Revenue Department, that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these tax losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and/or it is
not presently considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which such tax losses can be
utilised.

KAERFN

—FRIASER

THE GROUP
AEE

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
492,621 =
(310,342) =
182,279 =
R—ZZFE—=ZH%+=-A=+—
B RKEBELANERA
FE ¥ 387,313,000 7t ( #8 & »

492,621,000/87C) Jh AF BB
EIRH - P BRARBIT(TARRE
TR Z=ZFHBREFNE130%
R B E—OFRNAE_F
—RF+AHMEAERE -

ZERIIEREMEGEBZ)BRA
BEA  ABREERASLZE(R
—E-MFE—-ANBERRREE
BER)DRNKEHE(EBL)AE
[RARIEREAS0% K20%HE o

RZE—=F+=ZRA=+—8"
REBRFERREENF AN
B E18 528,995,000 T (=&
—ZF L E) c ARAREFIRT
AITEOR| - MNP 2 S T B S IR R
RIBLETIAEE - PEFSHER
8,178,000 7t & 20,817,000/% 7T
BN —E—tFR_T—NF
fE R o

R-_E—=%+-_A=+—8"
REBRBEBELEZHREERA
51,339,000 L (=& — = F :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI
27. SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

21. RARDBRER

2013 2012
—E-=F T4
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
EREREA FET Epelre d= FHT
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of FHREEO.10
HK$0.10 each B2 EiEiE  3,000,000,000 300,000 3,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRHT -
Ordinary shares of FHREE0.1074
HK$0.10 each T2 EER
At 1 January n—HA—H 204,312,663 20,431 206,962,604 20,696
Exercise of IR AR EE
warrants (note a) GEEY 20,289,607 2,029 59 -
Repurchases BB (D)
(note b) (1,618,000) (162) (2,650,000) (265)
At 31 December B+=A
== 222,984,270 22,298 204,312,663 20,431
Notes: MEE -
(a) The warrants entitle the holders to subscribe for new ordinary

shares at an initial subscription price of HK$5.00 per ordinary
share in cash, subject to normal capital adjustments. The
warrants will expire on 4 March 2016 and 41,392,520 warrants
entitling the holders thereof to subscribe 41,392,520 ordinary
shares have been issued. During the current year, 20,289,607
(2012: 59) warrants were exercised, accordingly, 21,102,854
(2012: 41,392,461) warrants were outstanding at 31 December
2013.

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X3 BB 2% A R A &)

(a)

RBEFUBZAEARVNTRE
EERE®AK5.00H T (A 1EH
—BERAFAE) AR S RET LB
B BRBREZFER=_T—AF=
AWM ABE®R - 41,392,520 15 M
FHFE AREAS1,392,520 8 &
AR ABREZFE TET - RA
£ E 202896077 (=T —=
F 59 RREFETE A
I R=ZFE—=F+=ZA=+—
H 21,102,854 (=T — =& :
41,392,46117 ) RIREE &) R E1T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

27. SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS - continued 27.

Notes: — continued

(b)

During the year, the Company repurchased and cancelled
1,618,000 (2012: 2,650,000) shares and the issued share
capital of the Company was reduced by an amount equivalent
to the nominal value of these shares. The premium of the
repurchased shares has been charged to share premium and
retained profits.

The repurchases were made for the benefit of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole with a view to enhance the

earnings per share of the Company.

Details of the repurchased shares by the Company through the
Stock Exchange during the year ended are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2013

ENEN A ]

fisE: —4&
(b) RAFEE - ARAfEE REH
1,618,000 fx ( = & — = & :

2,650,000/%) &3 - MARFEZE
BOTRATREERNEERD 2@
ERERD - CEEERD ZEER
R 0334 18 Ko AR B s MAER ©
BEROTHARR RERRZE
BREMIEL  BARSARAAZ
FRRAF -

ARPARAFEEBHIED 2K
BN

BE-_T—=F+=-A=+—H1

FE

Aggregate
Number of consideration
ordinary shares Price per ordinary share paid (net of
of HK$0.10 each Highest Lowest expenses)
SREE0.10BTZ eNRELRE
LERHE BREERER (HIBRBASR)

53 543
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FHET
April 2013 —ZT—=FmA 46,000 5.6 5.6 259
May 2013 —T—=%HA 1,572,000 5.8 5.6 9,302
1,618,000 9,561

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE-_T——F+-_A=+—HIi
FE

Aggregate
Number of consideration
ordinary shares Price per ordinary share paid (net of
of HK$0.10 each Highest Lowest expenses)
BIREE0.10BTZ ENRERRE
TLmikE A GARE BARERE (HIBRFR)

&= &K
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
T BT FAET
March 2012 —T—=-F=A 98,000 4.20 4.15 412
April 2012 —=T—=—%FWnmA 704,000 4.20 4.20 2,969
May 2012 —ZT——FHA 840,000 4.30 4.30 3,627
August 2012 —ZT——%N\A 730,000 4.20 4.15 3,054
October 2012 —T—=%+A 88,000 4.35 4.21 376
November 2012 —ZT——%+—A 110,000 4.20 4.20 464
December 2012 —T——&+—AH 80,000 4.70 4.70 378
2,650,000 11,280
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI

THE COMPANY

At 1 January 2012

Profit and total
comprehensive
income for the year

Final dividend
proposed

Special dividend
proposed

Dividend distributed

Reversal of dividend
arising from
repurchase of shares

Repurchase of shares

At 31 December 2012

Loss and total
comprehensive
expense for the year

Dividend distributed

Underprovision of
2012 final and
special dividend

Repurchase of shares

Exercise of warrants

At 31 December 2013

Share
premium
B 17 E
HK$'000
F&T
¥iNNC|
R-E——F—HA—H -
F @AM EER AR
HER R BRRE B
BT sl ds)
EYEET S -
BEERROEEZKRE
Bl =
RZE—Z—ZF+= A
=+—H -
FARENEE R AR
BIRERE =
ZE - FRERERRI
BREENRE
fE B 3% 17 (192)
TR RREE 99,419
R—_ZE—=%+_H
=+—H 99,227

The Company's reserves available for distribution to
owners of the Company at 31 December 2013 are
represented by share premium, retained profits and
dividend reserve totalling HK$1,391,028,000 (2012:

HK$1,413,907,000).

The Company has previously operated a share incentive
plan (the “Share Incentive Plan”) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's

operations.

Dividend Retained
reserve profits Total
REME REER B
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
41,393 1,417,813 1,459,206
- 6,781 6,781
37,798 (37,798) -
43,927 (43,927) -
(41,065) = (41,065)
(328) 328 -
- (11,015) (11,015)
81,725 1,332,182 1,413,907
- (23,706) (23,706)
(89,193) = (89,193)
7,468 (7,468) -
- (9,207) (9,399)
- - 99,419
- 1,291,801 1,391,028

KRR _TE—=F+=-_A=+—
HRAIED R FARBESR A ZHEE
TARGOEE - REBRMERER
& » 42%3/51,391,028,0005 L ( =
T— 4% :1,413,907,000/7T) °

ARRABE A E e — B R 8
(TR D 2T El)) - RYAKE R
BREHERNEER2EE -

PR (R B L 22 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

Pursuant to the Share Incentive Plan, the Board may,
at its discretion, invite any employees, executive or
non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors), officers, advisers, consultants
or such other persons from time to time to be an
eligible person to whom share options will be granted
as an incentive to attract and retain them for their
contributions to the business development of the
Group. The Share Incentive Plan was approved and
adopted by the Company on 7 June 2002 (the “Adoption
Date”) and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The total number of ordinary shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Incentive
Plan (excluding options lapsed) is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
as at the Adoption Date, without a prior approval from
the Company's ordinary shareholders. The maximum
entitlement of each eligible participant under the Share
Incentive Plan of the Group in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant must not exceed 1% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue at the date of grant,
unless shareholders’ approval has been obtained in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 14 business days from the date of the offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by
the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the Directors, but in any
event such period may not go beyond 10 year from the
Adoption Date.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the Directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the nominal value of the Company’s ordinary shares;
(i) the average closing price of the Company's ordinary
shares on the Stock Exchange on the five consecutive
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer
of the share option; and (iii) the closing price of the
Company's ordinary share on the Stock Exchange on
the date of the offer of the share option (which must be
a business day). Further details of the Share Incentive
Plan are also set out in a circular of the Company dated
22 May 2002.

The Share Incentive Plan has expired on 6 June 2012.
No option was granted under the Share Incentive Plan
during the period from 1 January 2012 to 6 June 2012,
nor was there any option outstanding at 6 June 2012.

BIER D BT E - EES 0 T
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SARAE - EBE - BREEAMSTE
RE 2 Hib BB ERERE 2
AT EABREBEBHEEHAE
BEELEREMEHZER/ - RHEE
B ER =T -_F,xAtH
([HRM B |)EAR D BIHE A R B
i Bk FERR 17 22 Ep 5T & 4 BT EUE
&3] BRI BEZ BB TFR
B o

REARR B EBIR F LA -
RIB A n R EDFT &R 2 AR
(TNBRERBBERE) LR &
BAARZ - NEEBIBA R BIR RN
HEZETRHNZ10% © FRIENIRE
RERERRIE - BRNKEA
AIEA+ @A SE 8aER2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI
30. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X3 BIp~

OBJECTIVES

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to owners of
the Group through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The Group's overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes loan from a related company disclosed
in note 25, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Group, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associates with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues and share buy-backs as well
as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.

i =N

30.

EXEREEHRRERBEEZ

FEBEBEANERAEEER
RERNAFELEELERES
E o RS BEERRRAER
REAEBEHEEATREADE -
AEBEMFREIBERBEERT

ek

o

AEBEMEARRBRFEHAEKX -
BIEEWEE R R ERCRERH
it25) B RFRBEFENUR
AEBEHRAARGEEZ(BRHREH
TTBA - FERREEN) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBBRME
31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 3. &@ITH
THE GROUP
REE
2013 2012
—E-=F — T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&ET T
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables B R ENKHIE
Trade receivables B 5 A 1,571 1,074
Other receivables and deposits H 4t e W IE K
RE 28,109 23,216
Pledged bank deposits SRITHIRF R 13,932 13,811
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIE S 530,319 906,901
573,931 945,002
At fair value through profit or loss #8815~ FlE
b7l
Financial assets at fair value through &iBigzsi% A (A
profit or loss HER 2 S RELVE E 583,265 626,449
Financial liabilities =R
Financial liabilities at amortised cost }&#t#56k 7N 21/ 2
THEBE
Trade payables B S ENFRIB 751,920 1,103
Other payables and accruals H b 15 5K IE & FE
5T IE 21,196 12,659
Loan from a related company =Rz ) NG
ZER 492,621 =
1,265,737 13,762
At fair value through profit or loss #8185 -F1E
b7l
Financial liabilities at fair value ERBEmEATE
through profit or loss PfE 2 S RE A & - 8,012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

instruments include trade and other receivables,
deposit paid, financial assets/liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, accruals,
amounts due from/to subsidiaries and loan
from a related company. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with the Group's and
the Company’s financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

RAEMERRMEE
THE COMPANY
AT
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables BEARENZHE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUL B /B A B ZRIE 388,302 576,753
Other receivables H fib pE U 5k I8 27 407
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR IR S 487,397 875,503
875,726 1,452,663
Financial liabilities cRAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1Z#E#5 K 51/fk.>
THEE
Other payables and accruals L e A< SR8 K pE
SRR 989 2,809
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST BT J8 R B 5IAE 50,201 50,207
51,190 53,016
The Group's and the Company’s major financial AEEERARGINEZSH

TEABREE S REMBIGK
B EfEE - BREER
NEEIIENEHEE 8
B R|RITEHRERE - EH
Ko E A FEAS FRIR - EET K
B AR EB A R
B ARRE R A R
ZER - WMFEBMTAZF
BORNEMEARE - 2
AEBEARA BT AN
MeRReEmsagk(E
TR - FRE RN A E
wERR)  EERR LTS
B o IR % AR 2 R
T - ERREEERE
BzERE - BERMEAR
BEhEE R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Market risk

(i)

Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency financial
assets/liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, including listed debt securities,
unlisted equity securities and bank
deposits, which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group's
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets (liabilities) at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

31.

SRITHEH-&
HiSER
0 EERE

AEEFERBERA
FEIRZINE S B
BE/BERELT
BERES  FELmK

& RRITER
AR B AN R

5 -

ZNES B P HR A B OR A
SNESTEC BB EE
(BE)zEEAN
T

THE GROUP
rEE

2013 2012

=B-= —E—_F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET T

United Stated Dollars (“US$") ZEjt([=7t]) 551,835 526,830

AUS SEIT 159,354 167,377
The Group manages the foreign currency NEEF BT EER
risk by closely monitoring the movement GNEE R 7 S - B3R

of the foreign currency rate and has
entered into a forward contract to hedge
against AU$ for an investment in a debt
security, but the designated hedging
effect during the year are ineffective.

Since HK$ are pegged to USS$, there is
no significant exposure expected on US$
transactions and balances whilst the
currency peg remains in place.

SRR - W E R —
HEHEFRER
MEHAH - ER
T EFRAZEESH
AR o

B 8 T B K T #
- wEAEERH
SR SRR IR A B
EHIR TR 5 M AR
Rid:: 3= NN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI

Market risk — continued

(i)

Currency risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to AUS.
The following table details the Group's
sensitivity to a 5% (2012: 5%) increase
and decrease in Hong Kong dollars against
the relevant foreign currency. 5% (2012:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items, and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2012: 5%) change in
foreign currency rate. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit
for the year where Hong Kong dollars
strengthen 5% (2012: 5%) against the
relevant currency. For a 5% (2012: 5%)
weakening of Hong Kong dollars against
the relevant currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit for
the year and the balances below would be
negative.

AU$ SBIT

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

mSEE-F

(i)

EEERR &
BREZH
AREBEBAZIRIT
Z R o TREIIAE
EEFB TR BB
EEE NN T BE5% (=
T——F 1 5%)ZH
KE 5% (ZF—=
F15%) 2HUREL
RERNETEEEE A
B E 305N | Bz DE
WSER  EEERE
T b INE R 2 &3]
BEEEE) o RIE DT
EBENEEIEE G
BzHAZNEE
WA R & B R g AN
bR Z25% (=& —=
F 5% )EFHARH
HE - NH 2 E&HE
TERBTTAABRER
FER(ZE—=
F 5% AFE
A 2380 o BhATT
HAME®IZES%
2 ——%F 156%)
B AFEERMNEn
REBEEARZ#
2. mNR2EHRE
p=3=F @0

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FATT
6,653 6,988

EEERS  BARF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

Market risk — continued

(ii)

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
deposits and loan from a related company.
Fixed rate debt securities expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk.
During the year, the Group does not
hedge its fair value and cash flow interest
rate risk. Interest rate risk is managed
by the management on an ongoing basis
with the primary objective of limiting the
extent to which net interest expense
could be affected by adverse movements
in interest rates. The Group's cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of the interest rate of
variable-rate bank deposits and the lending
rate published by the PBOC arising from
the Group’'s variable-rate loan from a
related company.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for bank deposits and loan
from a related company at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amounts of liabilities
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 basis points (2012: 50 basis
points) increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management’'s assessment of the effect
from possible change in interest rates.

If the interest rates had been 50 basis
points (2012: 50 basis points) higher or
lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's profit for the year
would decrease/increase by HK$358,000
(2012: HK$4,489,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group's exposure to
interest rates on its loan from a related
company.

mEEE - E&

(ii)

RFHERBRERERN
E e

7N 52 B A BT B R
RFITIFR LK ERE
BRAEAIZEREBZ
BenErMERAR -
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BEEER 5EH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

Market risk — continued

(i)~ Other price risk
The Group was exposed to price risk
through its listed debt and unlisted equity
securities. In order to mitigate such risk,
the Group would monitor the price risk and
will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Other price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to debt
and equity price risks at the reporting date.

At 31 December 2013, if the prices of the
listed debt and unlisted equity securities
had been 5% higher/lower, profit for
the year would increase/decrease by
HK$28,422,000 (2012: HK$31,322,000) for
the Group as a result of the changes in fair
value of the debt and equity securities.

Credit risk

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade
and other receivables and investment in listed
debt securities at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the Directors consider that the Group's credit risk
is significantly reduced.
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REMBHRRME

Credit risk — continued

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

For debt securities, the Group manages the
credit risk exposure by using its internal rating
system, and also taking external ratings into
account. Investments in debt securities are
viewed as a way to gain a better credit quality
mapping and, at the same time, to maintain
a readily available source of funding to meet
funding requirements.

Other than concentration of credit risk on
liquid funds which are deposited with several
banks with high credit-ratings, trade and other
receivables with exposure spread over a number
of counterparties and investment in listed debts
consist of a large number of portfolio, spread
across diverse industries and geographic area,
the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of borrowings.

Liquidity risk analysis

The following table details the Group's
contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. In addition, the following table details
the Group's liquidity analysis for its derivative
financial instruments. The tables have been draw
up based on the undiscounted gross (inflows) and
outflows on those derivatives as it is settle on a
gross basis on contractual maturity which differs
from the carrying amount in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GAMBEENE
31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 31. SRIAE-#&F
Liquidity risk — continued REBESREK &
Liquidity risk analysis — continued REE TR —#&
The table includes both interest and principal THRBEENEREZHEER
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows 2 o WASRBEHHE
are floating rates, the undiscounted amount is BIRITIR SRR B MEHR
derived from the interest rate curve at the end of ZF R AR o
the reporting period.
THE GROUP REE
Carrying
Weighted  On demand Total  amount at
average orlessthan 3 months 1year undiscounted 31 December
interestrate ~ 3months  tolyear to2years  cashflows 213
K-2-=%
i
METH REXEED AEREER =t-Az
f®  OW=fR =fRE-F -FE@E 2] REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TR TER TR TER TR
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ #f74£HEE
Trade payables B AR NA 751,920 - - TE1920 751920
Other payables and accruals EtERTE RE50E N/A 19,922 1,214 - 21,19 21,19
Unsecured loan from a related RE-BEELR BEA
company -6
- variable rate - % 9.49% 10,016 341,487 198,241 549,744 492,621
781,858 342,761 198241 1,322,860 1,265,737
Derivative financial assets fTESREE
Foreign currency forward contract ~ SMEEEAR
- inflow =A N/A 183,260 - - 183,260 N/A
- outflow i NA  (168448) - - (168448) N/A
1812 - T Y )
SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X3 EIBR 2% A R A &)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 1. E@MTE-#&
Liquidity risk — continued REBESRK &
Liquidity risk analysis — continued FBELREES T —E
THE GROUP - continued AEE-F
Carrying
Weighted ~ On demand Total  amount at
average  orlessthan 3 months Tyear undiscounted 31 December
interestrate 3 months tolyear  to2years  cashflows 212
RoE-f
T4
METY BEREES ARRE  =t-HY
flg  JR=@R =BRAZ-§ -§EME RELE REH
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% Thn Thn Thn Thr Thn
Non-derivative financial liabilities 4 SREE
Trade payables BAEHA N/A 1,103 - - 1,103 1,103
Other payables and accruals HENZBRESFR N/A 12,113 h46 - 12,659 12,659
13,216 h46 - 13,762 13,762
Derivative financial liabilities fiELRER
Foreign currency forward contract ~ SMEEHAF
- inflow =A N/A - = (183,260 (183260] N/A
- outflow i N/A - - 189567 189567 N/A

= 6,307 6,307 8,012

Annual Report 2013 3§



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SREMBRRME
31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 31, E@MITAE-&
Liquidity risk — continued REBESREK &
Liquidity risk analysis — continued TBEREE TN —E
THE COMPANY NN
Carrying
Weighted  On demand Total  amount at
average orlessthan 3 months 1year undiscounted 31 December
interestrate ~ 3months  tolyear  to2years cashflows 213
RZ%-ZF
+28
METH REXEED AEREER  =1-A
f®  OW=fR =fRE-F -FE@E g <EEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
% TR TR TR TER TR
Non-derivative financial liabilities 4 4RERE
Other payables and accruals EAERZE RE SR N/A 889 100 - 989 989
Amounts due to subsidiaries EMHBARE N/A 50,201 - - 50,201 50,201
Financial quarantee (note 33) (note)  BIFSER(H3E33) (Hizt) N/A 60,837 - - 60,837 -
111,927 100 - 112,02 51,190
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ 4 4RERE
Other payables and accruals At ERTERE A N/A 2,566 43 - 2,809 2,809
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERMEARE NA 50207 - - 50200 50207
Financial quarantee (note 33) (note)  BIFSER(K3833) (Hizt) N/A 2431 - - 2,41 -
15,204 243 - 15,447 53,016
Note:  The amounts included above for financial guarantee Mizr : A EBEBBIERESDEA
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could HEBEARHEFHERE

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited XFBIERIERRBRE A

be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers
that it is more likely than not that no amount will
be payable under the arrangement. However, this
estimate is subject to change depending on the
probability of the counterparty claiming under the
guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that the
financial receivables held by the counterparty which
are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

ReFERAREREZH
BENEZBERZES
SH - BEBERREHRZ
B AKBERRRAEE
BARBRZFEXNEMS
B AW BLAMBERT
HFIRBERRHER
ZAJREMETRE - bt AT B
HRIRFEERSAHE
ZREFREEREZEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 31. &I AE-#&
This note provides information about how the Z IRt EEAEEETE
Group determines fair values of various financial ZHEcMEEMERMBER
assets and financial liabilities. FEMEER -
Fair value as at
AYLE
Valuation
31 December 31 December Fair value  technique(s)
Financial assets SREE 2013 2012  hierarchy  and key input(s)
RZZ-ZF RZT--F
+=A +=A EEAER
=1-H =t—H AVEEBR FEBRAHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T
Listed debt securities B FiEKER 531,114 589,064 Level 2 Quoted bid prices
F- iR iEE
Unlisted equity AEMRAES 37,330 37,385 Level 2 Quoted bid prices
securities EZR PR (E
Foreign currency AR B S [F] 14,821 (8,012) Level 2 Covered interest
forward contract BE_R rate parity
by
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 REFERBAFE  F—
in the current and prior years. MEAZE — 4 v M o

Annual Report 2013 3



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRERME
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2013 and NZE—=FR —F——F
2012: +=-—A=+—HZAVEE
&

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£ E& B= Pk

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT TET FExT FET

2013 —Eg—=

Financial assets at & i@i8251% A F(EF
fair value through BEZ S REE
profit or loss

2012 -

Financial assets at & iBEwIRAFET
fair value through BEZ & R1&EE
profit or loss

Financial liabilities  FiBBIE A FES
at fair value Rremas
through profit or
loss

The investment in debt and equity securities
designated as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss under Level 2, fair values
have been determined by reference to their
bid prices at the reporting date provided by the
brokers, which were derived based on vendors
quotes and/or published rates from Bloomberg/
Reuters/Traders, and have been translated using
the spot foreign currency rates at the end of the
reporting period where appropriate.

The fair value of the foreign currency contract
has been assessed by a firm of independent
professional valuers, significant inputs into the
valuation model include spot foreign currency
rate, risk-free rates and time to maturity.

The Directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values.

583,265 - 583,265
626,449 - 626,449
(8,012) - (8,012)

AT MR A E SR ER
BE_REEAEBRBRT
NVPEIFEZEBEE A
FED2ELRARTEZ R
SHEAEBMETE  mMzE
ANERBZEITARE R
ALV -3t e NN i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

At 31 December 2013, banking facilities of the Group
was secured by pledged bank deposits with carrying
values of HK$13,932,000 (2012: HK$13,811,000).

At 31

December 2013, the properties under

development for sale with carrying values of
HK$1,330,005,000 (2012: nil) were pledged to bank to
secure the banking facilities granted to SkyOcean Real
Estate (Qian'an) Co., Ltd..

At the reporting date, certain corporate guarantees were
given by the Group to external third parties of which
were not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements as follows:

(i)

At 31 December 2013, corporate guarantees
were given by the Company to certain third
parties in connection with tenancy agreements
entered into by its subsidiaries with an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$60,837,000 (2012:
HK$22,431,000).

The Company did not recognise the financial
guarantee contracts as at 31 December 2013 and
2012 as the Directors of the Company considered
that it was not probable that the payment of
rental under respective tenancy agreements
would be in default.

As set out in prior year consolidated financial
statements of the Group, the Group disposed
of the entire interest of the Quality HealthCare
Limited, Quality HealthCare Medical Holdings
Limited, Quality HealthCare Medical Services
Limited, Quality HealthCare Services Limited and
Portex Limited (“Disposal Group”) in 2010. The
Group has signed a tax deed to indemnify the
purchaser for tax liabilities of the Disposal Group
prior to the completion of the disposal which has
not been provided for in the closing account of
the Disposal Group as at 30 November 2010. The
valid period for claims under the tax deed shall
be 7 years from completion. The Group currently
considers it is not likely that any liabilities will
arise therefrom.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group
was engaged in certain litigation and claims
which have not been disclosed in detail, as the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
material economic benefits is considered
remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

As lessee

At the end of each reporting period, the Group and
the Company had outstanding commitments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises which fall due as follows:

ERAMA

REREHMR - "EBRARFIR
BAAREREMNZIMEH
EMENREERENT

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
HEE AR
2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-=f T ZB-=F —IT—=F

HK$'000

F#ExT

Within one year —FER 27,238
In the second to fifth year 8 —&F A4 40,400
67,638

Leases are negotiated for a term of one to four years
(2012: one year and five months to five years) and
rentals are fixed over the respective leases.

On 25 May 2012, the Group entered into a sub-tenancy
agreement (“Sub-tenancy Agreement”) with AP
Administration Limited (“AP Administration”), a fellow
subsidiary of the Company, to lease office premises
for a term of one year and nine months commencing
from 1 June 2012 and expiring on 28 February 2014.
On 4 July 2012, the Company and AP Administration
agreed in writing to change the term of the Sub-tenancy
Agreement to one year and three months commencing
from 1 October 2012 and expired on 30 December
2013. As at 31 December 2012, total future lease
payments payable by the Group under non-cancellable
operating leases in relation to the Sub-tenancy
Agreement amounted to HK$1,456,000.

As lessor

The Group subleases certain of its premises under
operating lease commitments, with non-cancellable
leases negotiated for a term of two to three years (2012:
three years) and rentals are fixed over the respective
leases.

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FHET TAET

22,327 - 1,248
18,253 - 208
40,580 - 1,456

HEFHBRER ENF(_ZF
——F:—FRABAEZERF)R
MR EREEETE -

R—ZE——FRA-_+HB ' &
£ B EAP Administration Limited
(TAP Administration]) (X2 & 2
BEKBRARDZoBH=E(D
izl ) AHERAEDE &
)&Hﬂg—y _ﬂz/\ﬂ Elf:L;l::
T—WE_A=-_+N\BHEm ' A5
—FEhMEA - R-_EBE——F+ AN
B+ AR A EAP Administration
AEmERZERE D Bz 2 B R

RE-_Z-_H+A-BARBE_-T
— =+ -"A=t+HE® "/RH—
F=EA K= ::—_¢+_ﬂ

=+—8 AEERES AR
T?ﬁﬁ(ﬁﬁz%«%a’ﬂiﬁfﬁz;ﬁﬂﬁi
T F4A%E A 1,456,000 7T °

ERHBEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS -

continued

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future

3. REHVNRE-F

RERSHR - AEBRET AR
HeReHOBBEPEYARZAR

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable KEEBEZBELOT :
operating leases as follows:
2013 2012
—EBE—=fF —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —&FR 718 240
In the second to fifth year FE_ZFERF 636 453
1,354 693
35. COMMITMENTS 35. KIE

2013 2012
—E—= T 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT

Development expenditure in respect EEHRFEME 2

of properties under development BREBEX
for sale

Contracted for BEETAY 420,493 =
Authorised but not contracted for B H#EEHAKRETLY 192 =
420,685 -

Annual Report 2013 3§



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI

Apart from the related party transactions disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
the Group had the following significant related party

transactions during the year.

(a)

The Group had certain transactions with AGL

and AGL's subsidiaries, which were fellow
subsidiaries of the Group during the year until
30 December 2013. These transactions also
constituted connected transactions as defined in
the chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Insurance premium expenses
charged by Sun Hung Kai
Insurance Consultants Limited
in accordance with the relevant
insurance brokerage services
agreement

Reimbursement to AGL the
actual costs incurred in respect
of management, consultancy,
strategic, company secretary,
internal control and business
advice services provided
by senior management and
selective staff of AGL to
the Group in accordance
with the relevant Sharing
of Administrative Services
and Management Services
Agreement and Supplement
Services Agreement

MBEERRERERA

RIRIER R IRERAE
A2 AR 1 s A R (R B

RIBHEBITBIRE RE
I RIS D 1 S Al
FERG = - A

SEZERERER

HEFTEABRAEE

RHEEE - BR - R

B - ARMWE A

B A% i) B R A iR AR

BEEZERERR
e SBEELEN

Rent, building management fees AP Administrationt®

and other charges for the sub-
tenancy of office premises
charged by AP Administration
in accordance with the relevant
Sub-tenancy agreement

Financial advisory expense
charged by Yu Ming
Investment Management
Limited for the acquisition of
assets and liabilities through
acquisition of Skyleaf Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries

BB EBESE
MOEYREEZHE
T PEERENE
fl 32 i

BRUEREEEARAA]

L5 B W R B AR
BRABIMENMEA
AUEEERBE -
FT BN 2 & b A Pl AR
B&

BRANGR G B RS TR R B 3P0 P BR
Z2EBEBEALZRSN  AEBER
FRAEMTEAEBREALTZR
% °
(a) AEEEBASERBEESE
ErxHBAR(AAEEZ
ARMNBAR)RFREE
—E—=#+-_A=+H#
TETRS - WERSHIE
REMBAEIAAZEREZ
RER S o

2013 2012
—E-—=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
1,035 1,154
3,500 3,400
1,548 387

900 =



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRME

At 31 December 2012, included in the Group's
accruals were outstanding balances with AGL
and AGL's subsidiaries of HK$1,662,000.
Accruals to these related parties were
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed term
of repayment.

Compensation to key management personnel
represents director's emoluments and disclosed
in note 11 to these consolidated financial
statements.

The properties under development for sale with
carrying values of HK$1,330,005,000 (2012: nil)
as set out in note 18 were pledged to bank to
secure the banking facilities granted to SkyOcean
Real Estate (Qian'an) Co., Ltd., a related
company as at 31 December 2013. The utilised
amount in respect of this banking facilities
as at 31 December 2013 is RMB394,000,000
(equivalent to HK$501,126,000).

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of
an independent trustee. Under the rule of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at
5% of the employee’s basic salary with the maximum
contribution of HK$1,250 per month (2012: HK$1,000
per month and increase to HK$1,250 per month since
1 June 2012). The obligation of the Group with respect
of MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution is
available to reduce the contributions payable in future
years. The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
of HK$1,703,000 (2012: HK$2,070,000) are charged to
profit or loss.

RZF—ZF+ZA=+—
H AEEZERER
FHBESEBEENB A
AlEMZHAEERES R
1,662,000/8 7 ° Mt EH
BB AL 2B REE R
B R E E 8 5K
BR o

AEBEz TEEEAB R
BEZEZHMH - FIRENZ
ERAMBHRME

WA E18FTE R E
—=f+-_A=+—8 -
BRPFEVEREEES
1,330,005,000 & jT ( — &
——F &) BERFETE
TEA—RBERRRFiH
E(BR)BRARERR
TREZEIF - R=F—=
F+-—A=+—H ' %B17
MEZABAEBBAAR
# 394,000,000 7T ( 48 & 7
501,126,000/ 7T) °
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Baesral hiRER s ERATEEETE
1&FIEEHIEATEETEEERE
i MIBRFTEIMEEHEASER
HBEVSXAAZGNEECNEESD
FFEE - IRERESFTEHEN - &
BREEASHIEEEELATFEHN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SREMBRRME
38. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 38. ZFRBWENKEBARRNEE
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES ENERE
On 30 December 2013, the Group acquired properties R-ZE—=F+-"F=+H8 ' K&
under development for sale and its related assets and B LA X {Z450,000,0007% 7T @] — &
liabilities, through acquisition of 100% of the issued RAE N B B IR AR A A Y EE X
share capital of Skyleaf Holdings Limited from Sheng IR AR A A 2 100% B2 3 17R%
Bang Holdings Limited, a related company in which Mr. AmMEEEREFPEEMENEER
Zhou Zheng and Ms. Zhou Jin have beneficial interest BEEMEBE  BHERERARH
of 80% and 20% respectively, for consideration of AREtERBEESTTHRERERS
HK$450,000,000. This transaction has been accounted 80% K20% #E s © X 5 E AR
as a purchase of assets and liabilities. BEBEEREE -
HK$’000
FET
Net assets acquired: Frii g 2 B EFE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MERE 1,437
Properties under development for sale BEPEEYE 1,691,168
Bank balances and cash wITHEBRRE S 4,131
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAh kI - e RIER
IR 6,171
Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 K H At JET R IA R FEET
PIE (760,286)
Loan from a related company RE—FHEBEARZER (492,621)
Total consideration satisfied by cash DRSS &M R(BEzE 450,000

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:

WREEL 2R EINRIFE

HK$°000

Fix

Cash consideration paid EfRERE 450,000
Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired FrE s Re RERBCEE

Ee (4,131)

Transaction costs paid B R G A 2,580

448,449

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X3 BB 2% A R A &)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

Details of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31

December 2013 and 2012 are set out below:

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Attractive Gain Limited

Cautious Base Limited*

Focal Glory Inc.

Grand Knight Limited
BRERAF

Hong Kong Dementia Services Limited

EREZFRAERBEARAA

LHY Limited

LYNX Technology Limited
AENBRBRAF

New Able Holdings Limited*

Secure Base Limited

Senior Care Elderly Limited

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

AERER 3 .56

Hong Kong
&

British Virgin
Islands

EBRAES

British Virgin
Islands

ABEXES

Hong Kong
Bk

British Virgin
Islands

EBRAES

British Virgin
Islands

ABEXES

Hong Kong
Bk

British Virgin
Islands

EBRRES
Hong Kong
&

British Virgin
Islands

RREXES

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

RZE—=Fk_FT——-—F+_H
=+—8  XRRIKBRARZFHE

Principal activities
and place of operation

BROREHR BEFLAFRERAES TEXBREEHY

B/ BEmRA

HK$100
100%7T

HK$10,000
10,0007%7C

US$1
(EI

HK$1
13T

US$1
1XT

US$1
(EI

HK$1,000,000
1,000,007

US$1
1%

HK$2
25T

US$1
1%

;M T
Attributable equity
interest held by the

Company
2013 2012
“E-=-f ~—T——F
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Investment in financial
instruments

Hong Kong

CRIARE BA

Investment holdings
Hong Kong
RARR B

Nominee Services
Hong Kong
REREARS

Inactive
Zhex

Provision of elderly
care services

Hong Kong

REtEERY - B

Investment holdings
Hong Kong
REER  &H

Medical equipment
distribution

Hong Kong

ERREIE BE

Inactive
e

[nactive
i

Provision of elderly
care services

Hong Kong

RIEEZRSG  BF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

39. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 39. FEMEB A ASIFE—&
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Place of Issued and fully Attributable equity
incorporation/  paid share capital/ interest held by the  Principal activities
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital Company and place of operation
WEARER AL B BRTREAR EERAAMBERTER TEXBREEHY
B/ BERBRA
2013 2012
ZE-Zf —T-——F
Senior Care Holdings Limited British Virgin US$1 100% 100% Investment holdings
Islands (E Hong Kong
EERTES REER  &H
Senior Care Limited* Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100% Provision of elderly
Bk 1,0007T care services
Hong Kong
REEZRE R
Senior Care Nursing Home Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100% Provision of elderly
B 1,00087 care services
Hong Kong
RALELRTG - BR
Sino Success (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Provision of corporate
ERERERAA® B 2T services
Hong Kong
RECERY  BF
Strategic Wonder Limited British Virgin US$1 100% 100% Inactive
ERELZARAA Islands E kS
RERIES
Skyleaf Holdings Limited* British Virgin US$1 100% - Investment holdings
Islands (E Hong Kong
EERAES REER &%
SkyOcean International United Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100% - Investment holdings
{formerly known as Skyocean BE 18T Hong Kong
International Holdings Limited) BERR &R
SkyOcean International United Limited
(AIEARFERERERAR)
Skyocean Real Estate (Tangshan) Co., Ltd. PRC US$25,100,000 100% - Property development
T 25,100,000% 7 nxEER
Tangshan SkyOcean Commercial PRC RMB5,000,000 100% - Property Management
Management Co., Ltd. el AR5,000,0007 NEER
UMS Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% 100% Inactive
B of HK$1 each Thex
2WxEREE
1B EER
@ Issued capital held directly by the Company * BEITRABARREERE

TR AR AT

SkyOcean International Holdings Limited X3 BIp~
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SkyOcean
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